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HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ.

NV Bar No. 5471 CLERK OF THE COURT
RoLAND LAW FIRM

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105

Henderson, NV 89074

Telephone: {702) 452-1500

Facsimile: (702) 920-8903

hroland@rolandlawfirm.com

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 8366

TIFFANY S. BARNEY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9754

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B

Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone:; (702) 438-7878

Facsimile: (702) 259-1116

Attorneys for Christopher D. Davis
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
In th tter of:
e ma Case No.: P-15-083867-T
The BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE Dept. No.: 26
TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on -
February 24, 2014. Hearing Date: April 22, 2015

Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.

ORDER
This matter came before the Court for hearing on the 22™ day of April, 2015 at 9:00
a.m., upon the Christopher D. Davis’s Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP 12(b) and NRCP
19 and Carolinc Davis’s Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24, 2014, to Assume Jurisdiction

over Christopher D. Davis as [nvestment Trust Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
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Trust Advisor, to Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for Immediate
Disclosure of Documents and Information from Christopher D. Davis. Christopher D. Davis
was represented by Harriet Roland, Esq. of the Roland Law Firm and Anthony L. Barney, Esq.,
of the law office of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd., Caroline Davis was represented by Mark
Solomon, Esq., of the law firm of Solomon Dwiggins and Freer, Ltd.; Stephen K. Lehnardt was
represented by Jonathan W. Barlow, Esq. of the law office of Clear Counsel Law Group; and
Dunham Trust Company was represented by Charlene N. Renwick, Esq., of the law office of
Lee Hemandez Landrum & Garofalo. After reviewing the pleadings on file and in the court
record, hearing oral arguments by both parties in this matter, being fully advised in the
premises, and for good cause appearing, the Court hereby finds and orders the following:

IT IS FOUND that since the first amendment, Christopher has been directing the trust in
Nevada, and that everyone involved relied on this amendment as being proper.

IT IS FURTHER FOUND that the Court has no affidavit that another beneficiary existed
at the time the first amendment was signed.

IT IS FURTHER FOUND that the Court has jurisdiction as a constructive trust because
action on behalf of the trust has been taken in Nevada.

IT 1S SO FOUND.

WHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis as [nvestment Trust Advisor is
granted without prejudice.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition to
Assume Jurisdiction over Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor is denied until a

more definite statement is filed.
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IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition to
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed Trustee is granted.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and [nformation from Christopher D. Davis is granted as to
Cleste o~ wn +ral
all information in his possessionlin his role as j;es ent Trus tAdv:soy andan hos
23 Adt MNEALge— oI =/ g
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED DECREED that Christopher D.
Davis’s Motion to Dismiss is denied.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that upon agreement of
all parties, this Court will retain jurisdiction and all matters will be heard by the probate judge.

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED.

DATED this/qﬁiay of /X 7<c, ,2015.

‘ D[é%C;COUR‘NﬂDGE
Respectfully Submitted by the Following: Approved as to Form and Content:
HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ. JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ.
NV Bar No. 5471 NV Bar No. 9964
ROLAND LAW FIRM CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GRrOUP
2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105 50 South Stephanie Street, Ste. 101
Henderson, NV 89074 Henderson, Nevada 89012
Telephone: (702) 452-1500 Telephone: (702) 476-5900
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903 Facsimile: (702) 924-0709
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis Attorney for Stephen K. Lehnardt
/17
/17
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Nevada Bar No. 8366
TIFFANY 8. BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Baor No. 9754

ANTHONY L, BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W, Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
Anorneys for Christopher 1. Daviy

Approved as to Form and Content:

MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.

NV Bar No. 0418

JOSHUA M. HOOD, ESQ.

NV Bar No. 12777

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, L1,
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas. Nevada 89129

Telephone: (702) 853-3483

Facsimile: (702) 833-5485

Attorneys for Caroline D. Davis

CHARLENE RENWICK, ESQ.

LEE, HERNANDEZ, LANDRUM,
GARFOFALQO, ATTORNEYS AT LAW
7575 Vegas Drive, Suite 150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Telephone: (702) 880-9750

Facsimile: (702) 314-1210

Artorneys for Dunham Trust Company
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NOTC
HARRIET H. RoLaxD, Esq. (m‘- j!gﬁn«m———

Nevada Bar No, 3471

Rotanp Law Firm

2470 I3, Saint Rose Pkwy.. Suite #1035
Henderson, Nevada 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1300
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903

Email: hroland{@rolandiawlirm.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of i Case No..  P=15-083867
Dept. No: Probate (26)
The BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY
HERITAGE TRUST, dated July 28, 2006, as
amended on February 24, 2014,

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Qrder was entered

by the Court on June 24, 2015 in the above-entitled matter, a copy ol which is attached hereto.

DA'TED this _/ day ol July. 2015.

CLERK OF THE COURT

(LY L
HARRIEST H. ROLAND, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 53471
Auarney for Cliristopher 3. Davis

Toll
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HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT

NV Bar No. 5471

ROLAND LAW FIRM

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903
hroland@rolandlawfirm.com

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 8366

TIFFANY S. BARNEY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 9754

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B

Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878

Facsimile: (702) 259-1116

Attorneys for Christopher D. Davis
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the matter of:
Case No.: P-15-083867-T
The BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE Dept. No.: 26
TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on .
February 24, 2014. Hearing Date: April 22, 2015

Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.

ORDER

This matter came before the Court for hearing on the 22™ day of April, 2015 at 9:00
a.m., upon the Christopher D. Davis’s Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP 12(b) and NRCP
19 and Caroline Davis’s Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24, 2014, to Assume Jurisdiction

over Christopher D. Davis as Investment Trust Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
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Trust Advisor, to Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for Immediate
Disclosure of Documents and Information from Christopher D. Davis. Christopher D. Davis
was represented by Harriet Roland, Esq. of the Roland Law Firm and Anthony L. Barney, Esq.,
of the law office of Anthony L. Bamey, Ltd., Caroline Davis was represented by Mark
Solomon, Esq., of the law firm of Solomon Dwiggins and Freer, Ltd.; Stephen K. Lehnardt was
represented by Jonathan W. Barlow, Esq. of the law office of Clear Counsel Law Group; and
Dunham Trust Company was represented by Charlene N. Renwick, Esqg., of the law office of
Lee Hemandez Landrum & Garofalo. After reviewing the pleadings on file and in the court
record, hearing oral arguments by both parties in this matter, being fully advised in the
premises, and for good cause appearing, the Court hereby finds and orders the following:

IT IS FOUND that since the first amendment, Christopher has been directing the trust in
Nevada, and that everyone involved relied on this amendment as being proper.

IT IS FURTHER FOUND that the Court has no affidavit that another beneficiary existed
at the time the first amendment was signed.

IT IS FURTHER FOUND that the Court has jurisdiction as a constructive trust because
action on behalf of the trust has been taken in Nevada.

IT IS SO FOUND.

WHEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis as Investment Trust Advisor is
granted without prejudice.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition to
Assume Jurisdiction over Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor is denied until a

more definite statement is filed.
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IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition to
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed Trustee is granted.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Petition for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and nformation from Christopher D. Davis is granted as to

CL‘-‘S o on '{‘(“ 3 o

all information in his possessionlin his m[e as ves ent Trus! tAdvisoy Gndan hoos
ro/¢ at MEAZge~ o3 ,;f/-f‘f

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED DECREBD that Christopher D.
Davis’s Motion to Dismiss is denied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that upon agreement of
all parties, this Court will retain jurisdiction and all matters will be heard by the probate judge.

IT IS SO ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED.

DATED this /% day of /7 P<cy ,2015.

g DI;%C%COﬁRT‘mDGE
Respectfully Submitted by the Following: Approved as to Form and Content:
HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ. JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ.
NV Bar No. 5471 NV Bar No. 9964
ROLAND LAW FIRM CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GRrOU?P
2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105 50 South Stephanie Street, Ste. 101
Henderson, NV 89074 Henderson, Nevada 89012
Telephone: (702) 452-1500 Telephone: (702) 476-5900
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903 Facsimile: (702) 924-0709
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis Attorney for Stephen K. Lehnardt
111
/11
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Nevada Bar No. 8366
TIFFANY 8. BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Bur No. 9754

ANTHONY L, BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W, Charleston Blvd.. Suiie B
las Vegus, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Faesimile: (702) 259-1116
Auorneys for Christopher D. Davis

Approved as (o Form and Content:

MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.

NV Bar No. 0418

JOSHUA M. HOOD, ESQ.

NV Bar No. 12777

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas. Nevada 89129

Telephone: (702) 853-5483

Facsimile: (702) 833-5485

Antornevs for Caroline D. Davis

Approved as to Form and Coment:
’,.—"'

p— ‘._--'(':“::,:-- i et

CHARLENE RENWICK, ESQ.

[.LEE, HERNANDIEZ, LANDRUM,
GARFOFALO, ATTORNEYS AT LAW
7575 Vegas Drive, Suite 150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Telephone: (702) 880-9750

Facesimile: (702) 314-12)()

Atrorneys for Dunham Trust Company
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HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESO. m X

NV Bar No. 5471 _ CLERK OF THE COURT
RoLAND LAw FirMm

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105

Henderson, NV 89074

Telephone: (702) 452-1500

Faesimile: (702) 920-8903

hroland@rolandlawfiom.com

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 8366

TIFFANY S. BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9754

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD.

3317 W, Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: {702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
Attorneys for Christopher D, Dinis

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the matter of: VTR
Case No.: P-15-083867-T

The BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE | Dept-No.: 26
TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on {

February 24, 2014,

NOTICE OF PETITION AND PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATON OF THE
ORDER DATED MAY 19,2015 RE: PETITION TO ASSUME JURISDICTION
OVER THE BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE TRUST DATED JULY
28. 2000, AS AMENDED ON FEBRURARY 24,2014, TO ASSUME
JURISDICTION OVER CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS AS INVESTMENT TRUST
ADVISOR, STPEHEN K. LEHNARDT AS DISTRIBUTION TRUST ADVISOR,
TO CONFIRM DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY AS DIRECTED TRUSTEE, AND
FOR IMMEDIATE DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION
FROM CHIRSTOPHER D. DAVIS;
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NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS
MOTION WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE
UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (19)
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION,

FAILURE TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE
COURT WITHIN TEN (18) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION
MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEF BEING GRANTED BY THE
COURT WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED HEARING
DATE,
TO: Caroline Davis, through her attorneys Mark Selon, Esq. and Joshua Hood Esq. of
Solomon Dwigging & Freer, Ltd.

T Dunham Trust Company, through its attorney Chaviene Renwick, Esq., of the law

firrn of Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garofalo.

TO: Stephen Lehnardt, through his attormney Jonathan Barlow, of Clear Counsel Law
Group.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing motion on for hearing
before the Honorable Judge Sturman in Dept, 26 of the Eighth Judicial District Court, located at

200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89155, on the 19thday of August , 2015, at

Christopher 1. Davis, by aund through his attorneys HARRIET H. ROLAND. Esq., of the
ROLAND LAW FIRM and ANTHONY L. BARNEY, Esq., of the law office of ANTHONY L.
BARNEY, LTD. hercby present their petition to reconsider this Court’s order regarding
Carclive Davis™ petition 1o assume jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage
Trust, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on February 24, 2014, to assume jurisdiction over
Christopher D). Davis as Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen K. Lelmardt as Distribution Trust
Advisor, to confirm Dunham Trust Company as Dirvected Trustee, and for immediate disclosure

of documents and information from Christopher D. Davis. This pleading is based on the
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Memorandum of Points and Authorities attached herelo, any exhibits attached hereto, and any

oral argument that will be heard in this matter,

DATED this 14™ day of July, 2015

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]

Respectfully Submitted:

ROLA \?\D L ’\ W l“IRM

H&RRI‘M P‘ ROT. :m;?
Nevada Bar No.: 5471
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MEMORAND{M OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I FACTS PRESENTED

Christopher Davis hereby incorporates the Facts Presented in his Motion to Dismiss
Pursuant t¢ NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19 {“Original Motion™} as if set forth fully herein, By way
of surpmary, he alleges:

Christopher’s mother, Beatrice B. Davis ("Beatrice™), a hife-long resident of Missourt,
created several trusts and did extensive, sophisticated estate planning after ber husband Hus W,
Davis died. Her long-time attorney was the Missour! fimn of Lehnard: & Lehuardt. She created
the Beatrice B. Davis Revocahle Trust, in Missouri, on April 4, 1990, (the Revocable Trast) and
the Beatrice B. Davis Family Herttage Trust {the “"FHT™), in Missouri, on July 28, 2004, She
participated in the Davis Family Office, a Missouri limited Habilily company, formed on
November 3, 1999, None of these entities had any Nevada comtacts until the purported
appointiment of Dunhar Trust Company on Febraary 24, 2014,

Christopber Davis (*Christopber™) and his wife Tarja are residents of Missourt. Caroline
Davig is a resident of Washington. (Caroline and Christopher serve as co-trustees of the
Revocable Trust which is administered under Missouri law, in Missourl.) Winfield Davis and
his sou Ace Davis are residents of Japan, but ¢itizens of the United States. Stepben Lehnardt, the
Trust Protector, is a resident of Missouri. Alaska Trust Company and its successor i interest,
Alaska USA Trust Company, do business in Alaska and, upon information and belief, have no
Nevada contacts. Among all the entities and assets, the only contact with Nevada is Dunham
Trust Company, (“Dunbam™} which is alieged w be currently acting as directed trustee of the

FHT. Even the Ashiey Cooper insurance policy (the product of a tax-free exchange from the

year 2000), which is the primary asset of the trust and the subject matier of Carcline’s petition,
s
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i3 not administered in Nevada. It is administered under a custodian domiciled in Puerto Rico,
and iis investment advisor 1s a Cepadian broker-dealer.

Dunham created FHT Holdings, LLC, ("FHT Holdings™ on March 28, 2014, and
transferred the jnsurance policy to it Dunham is the 100% owner/member of FHT Holdings.
Christopher is the manager, and Dunham purportedly acts as “divected trustee” pursuant to the
purported First Amendment to the FHT dated February 24, 2014, Upon information and belief,
the divecied trustee and LLC structure was put into place by Dunham in an attempt to shield
uself from the fiduciary lability inherent in holding large assets without diversification.

Christepher Davis, as manager of FHT Holdings, has no power aver the Ashiey Cooper
policy, or over the Puerio Rico custodian, or over the Caussdian broker-dealer investment
adviser. Upon information and belief, the sole purpose of his appointment and the formation of
FHT Holdings, LLC, was to shield Dunbam from fiduciary liability for its action or inaction.
Christopher receives no compensation or benefit in bis position as manager of FHT Holdings,
Because FHT Holdings is solely owned by Dunham, Christopher can be removed by Dunham at
any time.

In the Order filed June 24, 2013, this Court found that “the Court has jurisdiction as &
consiructive trust because action on behalf of the trust has been taken in Nevada™' Based on
this finding that jurisdiction was proper this Court assumed Jurisdiction over Christopher D
Davis and granted immediate disclosure of “all information in his possession, custody and
control in his role as tnvestment trust advisor and or his role as manager of FHT L*w]dingc;s.'“3

. LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT

P See Opder, Ned June 24, 2018

2 jd
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A, Inherent Authorify to Reconsider the Court’s Prior Ovder
A court has inherent authority to reconsider its prior orders.” Recousideration is also proper
pursuant to E.D.C.R. 2.24 which states in pertinent part:
{a) No maotions oncg heard and disposed of may be venewed in the sae cause, nor may ihe
same matters therein embraced be reheard, unless by leave of the court granted upon motion
therefor, after notice of such motion o the adverse parties,
{b) A party seeking reconsideration of a ruling of the conrt, other than any order which may
be addressed by motion pursuant to N.R.C.P. 30(b), 32{k;, 39 or 60, must file a motion for
such relief within 10 days after service of writien notice of the order or judgment unless the
time is shortened v enlarged by order..
(¢} I a moton for rehearing is granted, the court may make a final disposition of the cause
without reargament or may reset it for reargiiment or resnbmission or may make such other
orders as are deewmed appropriate under the eircumsiances of the particnlar case.
A petition for reconsideration may i3 appropriate when there is clear error or to prevent
manifest injustice, and when a court overlooks controlling decisions.”
B. Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction Invalidates Nevada's Jurisdiction Due To
Absence of Conditions Precedent to Change of Sitas from Alaska to Nevada,
The entirety of Caroline’s petition and her opposition fo the motion o dismiss, and her
request for the Nevada court to assert jurisdiction over Christopher and the Revocable Family

Trust, rests defectively upon the presumed validity of the change of situs of the Beatrice B.

S Traif v Faretto, 91 Ney, 401, 338 P 2d 1026 (307S) Muwphy v Murpli, 64 Nav, 440 £1947)
* Nynes v, Ashorofh, 375 F3d §10, 812 (0% Cir. 2004): See also Offfcial Comm. (F Unsecwred Creditors v, Coup

& Lybrand, LLP, 332 F.3d 147 (2% Cir, 2003).
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Davis Family Heritage Trust dated huly 28, 2000 (the “FHT”} from Alaska to Nevada,
purportedty accomplished by the February 24, 2014 First Amendment.

It is imporant © note that the question of the validitv of the chanwe of siius is different

than the question of the validity of the First Amendment. Although Caroline asserts that the

purported First Amendment is “presumed 10 be vaiid unless proven ntherwise™, all the facts and

1

svidence prove the change of situs (a condition precedent to any amendment) was invalid and

[ 4

not permitted under the terms of the FHT.  The vahdity of the FHT (and presumably its

amendmenis} must be derermined under Alaska iaw, by the express mandate of Article i4,
Section 6 of the FHT.
Seciion 6, Paragraph 1, of the FHT provides the requarements for a change of situs as:
Except as expressly provided hevein, the situs of this agreement or any subtrast
established bereunder may be changed by the unanimous consent of all of the
beneficiaries then eligible (0 recetve mandatory or discretionary distributions of net

income under this agreement or such sabirust, with the consent of any then-acting
Protector and the Trustes thereof, which shall be given onlyv affer Trustee has obtained

T e s,

advice {frow counsel as to the tax and other cousequences of a change in situs.”

i

The conditions precedent to the change of situs require that all of the beneficiaries then

eligible to receive mandatory or diseretionary distributions muast consent to the change of the
situs. In addition, both the FHT Trust Protector and Trustes must consent to the changs of sitas
after the Trustee has been able to meet with an altorney to discuss the fax and other
consequences of a change in situs, and after all the current income beneficiaries of the FHT have

consented. These conditions did not oceur. Therefore the aitus of the FHT remains in Alaska,

and jurisdiction

P See Article 14, Section 4, Page 19-7.attached as Exhibit | 1o Caroline Davig's Original Petition {emphasis acded).

L
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Caroline recognizes that Tarja Davis is a discretionary beneficiary of the FHT. This is
immediately clear by a simple review of its terms of the FHT® and by a simple review of the
ceriificate of service.” Furthermore, Caroline asserts and provides written proof that Alaska
USA Trust Company {“Alaska USA™) resigned as Trustee on December S, 2013. The

resignation of Alaska USA as Trastee occurred almost three months prior to the execution of

the purported first amendment on February 24, 2014 and the appointment of Dunham Trust

Company (“Dunham™) as successor Trustee.

There is no evidence that anyone or any entity assumed the office of Trustee and was in
authornity to act and provide consent of the Trustee during the period between the resignation of
Alaska USA in December 2013 and the purported first amendment appointing Dupham almost
three months later. In contraveation of the terms of the FHT. there was a purported change in
situs made while there was no acting Trustee to provide informed consent to the change in situs.
Further, it appears everyone overlooked the necessity of obtaining the consent Christopher’s
wife, Tarja, who was and is a beneficiary entitied to discretionary distributions. Tarja did not
consent to the change in situs, and her signature cannot be found on any of the documents
purporting to achieve the change in sitns to Nevada and Dunham’s appointment as successor
trustee. Tarja was not given proper and adequate notice of the proceedings upon which this

Court issued its order to protect her intevests or file a responsive pieading.

® See Trust, Article Three, Section 1, Page 3-1; See also Article Eight, Section 3.d., Page §-4, See also Article 8-
4.1.1-2, Pages 8-12 and 8-13 attached as Exhibit | ro Caroline Davis® Originai Petition.

T See Certification of Savvice for Cpposition 1o Chrisophar D, Davis® Motioo to Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP (12)(b)
and NRCP 19 dated Aprii 13, 2015 {This corrected mail service was helatediv and deficiently made by Caroline
D fter Christopher Davis filed his Motion to Dismiss alerting the parties as to the defectiveness of both the
service of process and the defective nature of the purported ficst armendmeni).

fld
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The law of Alaska, as the situs and place of administration of the FHT befors the
atteripted change of situs, and the place of residence of Alaska USA Trust Company, the then
Trastee, governs the validity of the First Amendment’s change of situs to Nevada, the
appointment of Dunham, and the other terms of the First Amendment, as well as the validily of
the First Amendmaent itself.

Article 12, Section 3 of the FHT requires “Any proceedings to seek jndicial instructions
or a judicial determination shall be initiated by my Trustee in the appropriate state court having
original jurisdiction of those matters relating fo the construction and administration of trusts.
Because under the terms of the FHT, guestions of validity must be determined ander Alaska
law, and Alaska was the original jurisdiction of the FHT anti] the atterupted change of sliug, an
Alaska cowrt must determine whether the change of situs and the First Amendment were valid.
Only then should the Nevada court take jurisdiction over the FHT, aud only tf jurisdiction is
then appropriate.

Alaska law allows for modification of an irrevecable trust apon consent, but ouly by
court approval.  AS 13.36.360. Modification or Termination of Inevocabie Trust By Consent,
reads:

{a) Except as otherwise provided by this section, on petition by a trustee, settlor, or
benefictary, a court may medify or terminate an irrevocable trust if all of the beneficiaries
consent and if continuatiop of the trust on the existing ferms of the trust i3 not necessary {o
further a waterial purpose of the trust. However, the court, in its discretion, may determine that
the reason for modifying or terminating the trust pnder the circumstances outweighs the interest
i accomplishing the material pwposes of the trust. The inclusion of a restriction on the

voluntary or involantary transfer of trust interests under AS 34.40.1 10 may constitute g matenal
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purpose of the trust under this subsection, but is not presumed to constitute a material purpose of
the trust under this subsection.

(b) Unless otherwise provided in the trust instrument, an irrevocable trust may not be
modified or terminated under this section while a settlor is also a discretionary beneficiary of the
trust.

(c) If a beneficiary other than g qualified beneficiary does not consent to a modification
or termination of an irrevocable trust that is proposed by the wastee, settlor, or other
beneficiaries, a court may approve the proposed modification or termination if the court
determines

{1y if all the beneficiaries had counsented, the trust could have been modified or
ermipated under this section; and

(2) the rights of a beneficiary who does not consent will be adequately protected or not
significantly impaired.

{d} In () of this section, “qualified beneficiary” means a beneficiary who

(1) on the date the beneficiary's qualification s determined, is entitled or eligible to
receive a distribution of trust incowe or principal: or

(2) would be entitled to receive a distribution of trust income or principal if the event
causing the trust's termination oceurs.

It is well settled that a trust may only be modified in accordance with its specific terrs.”

Where a trust instrument requires the consent of specific parties in order for an amendment o be

® Daltinger v. 4bel, 199 11, App. 3d 1057, 1059-1060 (1L App. Ci. 1990) citing Parish v, Parish (1963), 29 5L 2d
141, 149, 193 N.E2d 761, 766.) (it is elementary that if the method of exercising a power of modification is
deseribed in the trust fnstrumeni, the power can be asserted only in that manner.)

16

PETAPP000456




< w oo =3 o [43] f= w o ol

o

5
i2

“
P8

4
e

15

18

18
1%
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

valid, the lack of consent will invalidate a purported amendment.” This required consent
demonstrates the importance of having Alaska USA Trust Company (“Alaska USA”) or their
successor-in-interest {and predecessor trustee) Alaska Trast Company demonsirate authority and
consent to chavge the situs of the FHT from Alaska to Nevady, because unless this evidence of
consent i provided, the FHT siws capnot be changed. The consent of some of the beneficiaries
and the FHT Trast Protector was not enough to meet the strict requirements of the condition
precedent (1.e. change of situs) for the purported First Amendment.

Caroline has provided no evidence of any written or even oral consent of any trusiee
authorizing the FHT s change in situs prioy to Alaska USA’s resignation on December 5, 2013.
She has not provided any evidence of Tarja baving consented to the change of situs. fo faci, she
never even provided proper statutory notice (o Tarja to enabie her to file even a simple affidavit
to protect her rights under the Trust. She bas not provided any evidence of the unanimous
agreement of Beatrice Davig’s children to appoint a successor trustee in the event the Trust
Protector fails fo appoint a Successor Trustee within thirty (30) days after Adaska USA
resigned,’’ and even if they had, the successor wrustee and Tarja would have had to consent 1o
the change of situs. Therefore, the change of situs under the purported First Amendment must be
presumed invalid uniil such evidence of an acting Trustee's cousent can be produced and
evidence of the Trustee’s and all bepeficiaries’ consent of the change in situs can be obtaned.

Further and most imporiantly, sach a dispute, which inclndes the validity of the First

W Witiiams v. Springfleld Marine Bank, 131 UL App 3d 417, 4 Ea {1085) (This rule was applied where
the trust instrumant pevmittied mmendment by the settiors, the ap;: @ cowrt holding that an aitempted amendment
by only one zeftlor, after the other had disd, wag invalid.); See aleo Pe»n*&mm {Second) of Trusts § 331,

Explanatory Notes, comment ¢, &l 144 (1939 (" the s rio modily the wast ml\y seith the
sonsent of one or more of the beneflejaries, or of the tny wola ii}is‘d persen, fie cannot modiy {1 trust witheut
such consent.” J.

" Spe Trust, Article Bleven, Section 3(c), Page 11-3, attached as Exiibir 1 to Caroline Davis’s Origieal Petition.
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Amendment, must be brought in Alaska, as the original situs of the FHT before the purported
First Amendment and the attempted change of situs.

Christopher asserts that the change of situs is invalid because of the iack of consent of all
beneficiaries and the absence of action by an Alaska Trustee. The determination of the validity
of the purported First Amendment and the change of situs {as well as its other provisions) is a
condition precedent to the Nevada court taking jurisdiction over the FHT. That determination
must be made under Alaska law before the Nevada court can assert jurisdiction over the FHT.
Caroline aileges that the FHT Trust Protector validly appointed Dunham as successor Trustee on
February 24, 2014, citing the second paragraph of Article 14, Section 6 as his authority to do so;
however as noted herein, she omitted the preceding paragraph relating 1o the change of situs
which is the condition precedent before an amendment can be authorized. Althongh the FHT
authorizes the Trust Protector and/or the beneficiaries to appoint & successor trustee in certain
circumstances, the change of situs could only be authorized upon consent by all beneficiaries,
and approval by a trustee in the original situs of Alaska

When the terms of a frust are vot followed, the resulting actions based upon such
deviation must be invalidated.”® Under the terms of the FHT, discussed above, it was not
Dunham’s consent that was required to change the situs. The timing of the purported Fust
Amendment and Dunham’s consent put the cart before the horse. In order to move the situs of
the FHT from Alaska to Nevada or any other jurisdiction. all the beneficiaries had to consent,
the “then acting Trust Protecior” had (o consent, and the Alaska trustee had to consent only after

obtaining the requisite legal advice. Only then could a change in sius occur. (This is a

1 Northwestern University v. Meloraine, 108 1L App. 3d 310, 438 MLE.2d 1369 (i982) (This rule was applied
where the settlor had neglected to follow the tenus of the trust which required for an amendment only that the
settlnr put the amendment i writing, sign it, and deliver it to the trastees during the ssitlor's lifetime.)
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different and more demanding standard than merely changing the trustee to another Alaska
trustee.  Another Alaska Trustee could have been appointed, and the consent of all the
beneficiaries could have been obtained; then upon agreement by the Trustee, all beneficiaries,
and the Trust Protector, the situs could have been validly changed. However, the FHT’s
purported First Amendment atiempts to change the FHT s situs while concurrently appointing
Dunham as a “directed frustee” Again, Dunham’s valid appointment as a Trustee, and is
consent to serve, could have been achieved only after the situs of the FHT was changed from
Alaska to Nevada. Had all of the beneficiaries consented, the decision to change the situs may
have found a more stable legal basis had Dunham been doing business in Alaska. But as a
Nevada trustee, Dunham would have had to already be in tenure as trustee, procured advice
from legal counsel about the tax and other consequences of moving the FHT silus, and then
authorized the actual change in FHT s situs from Alaska. The requisite consent of an authorized
Alaska trustee and all the beneficiaries does not appear in the purporied First Amendment or in
any other document, and Caroline Davis does not provide any other evidence of a Trustee’s
consent between December 2013 and February 2014, The condition precedent of ail the
beneficiaries’ consents and the Alaska trustee’s copsent was not met in order to provide
authority to then acting Trust Protector, Stephen Lehnardt, to change the situs of the FHT
without the consent of an Alaska Trustee as required by the terms of the FHT. The FHT's
purporied First Amendment’s change of situs is, therefore, invalid.

Establishing the validity of the FHT s purported First Amendment under NRS 164.610
without invoking Alaska jurisdiction is Caroline’s “attempted foothold” in her urging for this
Court to teke improper in rem jurisdiction over the FHT, FHT Holdings, and personal

jurisdiction over Dunham, but more importantly is the defective basis upon which she urges this
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Court i assume jurisdiction over Christopber in all bis capacities within any family entity,
foreign or domestic, including the Revocable Trust and the Davis Family Office which are
residents of Missourl, Even assuming arguendo that jurisdiction is proper through the untenable
theory that the purported First Armendment iy valid, this Court is only statutorily authorized o
obtain jurisdiction over the FHT if the prevequisites of NRS 164,010 are et As such, Caroline

is more than willing fo overlook the FHT s reguirements for change of situg and the

Jurisdictional prereguisites, and amrive at the erropeous copclusion that somehow Christopher

and Mr. Lenhardl “counsented to the jurisdiction of this Court by operation of law.”™ Noticeably,

Caroline cifes WNRS 163.33 » authority for this statement but ignores the requirement that the

&"
*3

FHT be subject to the laws of Alaska, which, is clearly in dispute precisely because of the
invalidity of the purporied First Amendment’s change of the FHT s situs (o Nevada,

It is clear that even during the life of Beatrice B. Davis, the situs of the FHT could not be
changed unless her Alaska trustee had obtained an opinion of legal connscl to the effect that the
change in situs would not impact adversely ov the spendtlwift provisions of the FHT. P The
express purpose of the FHT was to support and protect Beatrice’s family for generations to
come, through the protection for the shares allocated to each bepeficiary, so that no situation
would be created that could expose any of the beneficiary™s shares to the claims of creditors
including amongst any beneficiary acting s a ereditor to another.'?

Reatrice Davis, the trastmaker, was very ciear that even 1f a power was granted o her
Trustee by applicable state and federal statutes, it would be suwictly hmited to any express

limitations or contrary directions in the F'H T.% Any amendment to change the situs of the FHT

" See Trust, Article Fourteen, Section 6, Page 14-7 and 14-5.
" See Trust, Article 8, Section 3 {b), Page §-3

2o e ; .y . 3 . ) o o .

” See Trust, Articie Thirteen, Section 3.z, Page {3-19,
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would require the opinion of legal counsel as to its effect and be curtailed, if applicable, by the
terms of the FHT. This protection is implicit in the requirement that the advice of legal counsel
be sought by the Trustee prior to a change in situs of the FHT.'® There is siniply no evidence to
suggest that such an opinion was obtained by the Alaska Trustee prior to the purported change
in FHT sifus.

Because of the lack of evidence of the required consent by the Alaska trustee and all the
beneficiaties, and because the Alaska trustees initiated and completed all the transactions for
which Caroline 1s demanding an account, the presence of the predecessor Alaska trustees acting
prior to February 24, 2014 (the date of the purported First Amendment) is indispensable to this
matter, in order to determine the validity and consent issues discussed herein. Without the

&

indispensible party(ies) being joined, including Alaska Trust, the predecessor trustee and
successor i interest of Alaska USA, and/or another Alaskan successor after December 3, 2013,

the matter cannot properly adjudicated.

. Indispensible Parties fo this Action and Caroline’s Failure to Provide Notice or

Service

Caroline alleges that, “During their tenure as Trustee, both Alaska'” and Alaska USA
distributed approximately $2,164,744.68, from loans taken against the Ashley Cooper Life
Insurance Policy, to Christopher individually, as Trustee of the Beatrice B. Davis Revocable
Living Trust, dated April 4, 1990, as amended (the *Revocable Trust™), and as Manager of the

Davis Family Office, a Missouri limited Hability company (the “Davis Office™). Caroline

apparently believes thai the Alaska trustees which allegedly procured more than two million

' See Trust, Article Fourteen, Section 6, Pags 14-7 and 14-8.
" Alaska Trust Company was the predecessor trusiee of the Beatrice 8. Davis Family Heritage Trust dated July
28, 2000 prior to Alaska USA Trust Company.
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doilars iy policy loans from Ashley Cooper Life Tnsurance Policy for various FHT purposes,
wchuding making loans to Beatrice and paying their own fees, are not indispensible parties,
simiply because she alleges that, Christopher, in his individual capacity, and in capacity as
Trustee of the Revocable Trust, and as Manager of the Davis Office, was the only individual to
receive distributions as a result of such oans and the only one privy to the information sought
by Ms. Davis,...”"" Her allegation is misplaced and unsupported by the evidence thar was
tendered to the Court.

Caroline apparently believes that veither Beatrvice, nor the Alaska trustees, nor any other
entity, were the recipients of any of the FHT funds borrowed from the Ashley Cooper Life
Insurance Policy, which based upon the administration expenses by Alaska and/or Alaska USA

or the Trust Protector is improbable at best. Under Alaska law and almost every other

jurisdiction in the United States, a trustee is entitled to fees, and the nandate of an accounting of

trust assets is directad to the trusige that actually administered the trust funds or assets, not 1o a
beneficiary or other crediior or debtor of the frust, ¥ In this case, those trustees reguired to
account would be Alaska Trust and Alaska USA (now merged into Alaska USA) and they are
the only ones who could account for these transactions and whether or not they received any of

those funds including but not Hmited to their adminisiration costs or other investment expenses.

Because only they would have such information, they are a necessary and indispensible party.
arcline’s request would greatly prejudice and unduly burden Christopher 1o secure information

from the priov trustees in Alaska for documentation that Caroline desires throngh a proceeding
in Nevada, during the time that she had co-equal status with him as a beneficiary. Alaska and/or

Alaska LISA would be the proper parties from whom to request her requested information.

e

See Opposition at T2G-22.
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Notabdy, Caroline alieges that Dunhas: Trust Company is an incdispensible party, having
aliegedly received a mere $25.000 of the iotal amount of policy foans {presumably for its fees
and expenses) while Alaska and Alaska USA are mot indispeunsible parties after having
aliegedly received and distributed $2.164.744.68 as well as allegedly transferring all the assets
of the FHT to Dunham. Even the $25,000 allegedly received by Dunbam Trust Company was
never proven or the basis epon which to take jurisdiction. Interestingly, the information Caroline
Davis is reguesting would be in the possession of the two Alaska trustees that she claims are not
indispersable, which is an unreasonable argwment. It is onclear it Caroline even bothered to
equest an acconnting from either Alaska Trust or Alaska USA concerning thewr alleged receipt
and distribution of $2,164.744.68, or from Dunham regarding the $25.000 that was allegediy
remedy. As a beneficiary, she could have casily requested this information from these trustees
without {iling the present court action.

Because of her rush to court without apparently requesting these documents from the
trustees, Caroline now attempts twice to indicate that she is “not now chiecting to the loans and

distributions being made or claiming any breach of fiductary duty...” or she “is not now
claiming any wiflfol misconduct or gross negligence by Alaska or Alaska USA.™ However,
whether or not she is now ohjecting to loans or making claims against Alaska or Alaska USA s
irrelevant to the fact that they are the parties holding the information she seeks. She has asked
this Court to assume jurisdiction over the Nevada trustee. the FHT, the Trust Protector and trust
adviser, and if she succeeds, she wili likely file any future action in this same Nevada case.

Therefore, her ailegation that “Alaska and Alaska USA have po interest in the ontcome of the

1 See Alaska Statute 153.36.080; See also NRY {64015 and WRS 133,031 )k}

17
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relief being sought by Ms. Davis in her Petition™ is simply a pretext for allowing her to later
name them as party defendants. In addition to Christopher, Alaska and Alaska USA would have
every interest in the outcome of this action because they were trustees of the Trust who made
the Trust loans which are the subject of Caroline’s concerns. and over which she has asked this
Court to exercise i rem jurisdiction. Furthermore, they were trustees for the time periods in
which Caroline seeks all information and, therefore, logically any information and/or claims
arising from the information in Alaska and Alaska USA’s possession are relevant to them.

Relying on the purported validity of the First Amendment to the FHT, Caroline comes to
the misleading conclusion that according to her, “[because] Dunbam Trust Jacked the authority
to act, the transfer of the Ashley Cooper Life Insurance Policy must have been done at the
direction of Christopher, as Investment Trust Advisor.” Noticeably, Caroline removes any
reference to the Alaska or Alaska USA Trustees who would have the information, and who
approved any alleged transfers and have the information pertaining thereto, Caroline freely
omits information to wrongfully obtain the information she seeks.  She further jgnores that
Christopher, as manager of an LLC wholly owned by the Trustee would not have the authority
o wansfer the policy to the FHT Holdings, LLC. Caroline leaps to her finger-pointing
apparently without bothering to request the transfer documents either from Dunbam, as owner
of the FHT Holding, LLC or the Puerto Rico custodian.

Caroline is simply attempting to gain access to records that she could request from the
parties that she claims are not indispensable, and to delve into Christopher’s personal affairs.
She has asked for an sccounting from him &s to the use of all the loan proceeds or distribution

from the FHT, without regard to the entity or person who in fact was the borrower! It is a

® Qe Page 7, lines 24-25 and Page 8, tines 17-18 of Caroline Davis's Objectioan.

18
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guestion for the Alaska trustee as to whether the loans or distributions were made in accordance
with the provisions of the FHT. With 20/20 hindsight, Caroline may regret that she did not
borrow funds, reguest distributions, or demand an accounting from the Alaska trustees while she
was able to do so. Now she {s asking this Court to turn 2 blind eye and “look beyond™ her
fatiure W oven make any appropriate request on the proper parties or serve the proper parties
that would have the information that she is seeking. Churisiopher respectinily requests thai this
Court recensider its order and grant his motion o dismiss and further deny Caroline’s claims in
thelr entirety.
D. Individual Parties or Entities Were Not Propevly Served for the Court to Exercise
Jurisdiction, and FHT Holdings® Corperate Form May Not Be Disregarded
In an effort to buitress their argument regarding their lack of proper service upon FHT
Holdings, LLC, Carcline cited to inapplicable case taw from Surrogate’s Court of New York,
New York County, which does not address the necessity of providing proper service © a
corporation. In similar fashion to ber omission of the language of the FHT as it related 1o the
condition precedent to any future amendment, she even withheld the pertinent language for the
subistantially all of the shares of a corporation, the corporate form may be disregarded and the

situation viewed just as if the fiduciaries held tide o the corporate assets. This would appesr o

be an oversimplification of the matter. Tt is not so much a matter of disregarding the corporate

form, but rather of giving paramount consideration to the testamentary plan and scheme, and
effectuating it in the manner prescribed by the testator. {citation omitted) Sometimes, due

consideraiion of the twsimmentary plan demands that the corporate form be respected. This is

21 e -
H petition at 7:5-6.
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particularly true where the testator directed the formation of a corporation or the continuance of
one formed during his lifetime. (citation omitted) .*

Under the facts of this case. Beatrice, as Trustmaker, did not form FHT Holdings, Inc.,
and did not specify that FHT Holdings, Inc. be given consideration a5 part of her testamentary
plan and scheme. Based upon the definition of the case cited by Caroline, she is atiempting 1o
oversimplify this matter, which cannot be done with regard to the facts presented in this matter,

Furthermore, in Swensen v. Sheppard, our Nevada Supreme Court recognized that NRS
164.010(1) and NRS 164.013(6) do not give the cowrt jurisdiction o impose personal
judgments.”  Likewise, it found that it could not impose personal Hability on individuals or
entities which “required the court to acquire “personal jurisdiction over {them as] partfies],
normally through appropriate process based on contacts with the jurisdiction or through [their]
general appearance therein 1o defend on the merits. ™

In her Opposition, however, Caroline atteripts to request this court take exception to the
requirements for proper service and notice, which is entirely improper. Caroline is attempting
to use the relaxed standards of statutory in rem jurisdiction for the more stringent requirements
necessary 10 obtain the necessary personal jurisdiction over Christopher Davis, individually or
upon FHT Hoidings, LLC. Again, this is improper. Proper notice and service are required for
personal jurisdiction over g party especially when requesting the cowt to exercise power and

authority over an individual party or upon a business eutity.

2 1n the Matter of Schaur, 39 bisc. 2d 880, 887, 242 N.Y.S.2d, at 132 {1963},

¥ Qwensen v. Sheppard (In re dboud), 314 P3¢ 941, 946 (Nev. 2013}

¥ [, ciiing Restwement (Second) of fudgments § 30(2) emt. ¢; see Young v. Nev Tirle Co., 103 Nev. 436, 442, 744
P2d 902, 903 (1987 ("A couwrt does net have jurisdicuon to enter judgment for or against one who is not a party to
the action.")
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Thevefore, even if the Court were to obtain jurisdiction over the insurance policy
administered by a Puerto Rico insurer with the advice of the Canadian broker-dealer investment
advisor, Caroline would also have to seek personal jurisdiction over Christopher, individually,
or FHT Holdings, LLC to obtain any relief she seeks. She did not do so.

Therefore, the due process rights of the corporation must be respecied, and service
property administered 1 order to obtain jurisdiction over Christopher, individually, and as
manager of FHT Holdings, LLC. Therefore, Caroline’s Qriginal Petition should be dismissed.

E. Additional Indispensable Parties Named in Opposition Were Not Served; therefore,

Jurisdiction is Impreper over Them.

Caroline admittedly did not include additional parfies in her Original Petition that she
now alleges were reciplents of FHT funds and loans from the insurance pohey. Caroline alleges
that, "During their tewre as Trustee, both Alaska and Alaska USA distributad approximately
§$2,164,744. 68, from loans taken agamst the Ashley Cooper Life Insurance Policy, to
Christopher individually, as co-Trustee (with her) of the Beatrice B. Davis Revocable Living
Trust, dated April 4, 1990, as amended (the “Revocable Trust™, and as Manager of the Davis
Family Office, a Missouri Hmited ability company (the “Davis Office”). In order to allegedly
distribute loans, Alaska and Alaska USA must have been recipients of FHT funds. Inorder to
make a loan of FHT funds 1o Alaska and Alaska, the custodian of the Ashley Cooper Life
Insurance Policy must have been in receipt of FHT funds. If as alleged, FHT funds were
received by Christopher, the Revocable Trost, and the Davis Family Office from Alaska and
Alaska USA, all three would have been recipients of those funds ay distributions. Of the prior
six aileged recipients, none of them was afforded proper notice or service in this matter.

Therefore, this court lacks jurisdiction nver these parties. Particularly, Nevada law does not
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aliow for this Cout to take jurisdiction over the Revocabie Trust and the Davis Family Office,
which are Missouri entities, without examining the reguirements necessary for jurisdiction over
foreign entities holding only personal property.

Carolinie, in effect, argues 1) the entity authorized to make the policy loan is not an
indispensible party, 2) that the party making the loans or distributions does not even need to be
noticed or served concerning the policy loans, 3) the only individual alleged as a recipient does
not need {o be served purseant to NRCP 4; and 4) that notice or service either ander NRCP 4 or
NRS 135014 does not need 10 be provided o the remainiug alleged distributees and recipients
of FHT funds. These four argurents violate all constitutionally protected due process rights
and related laws existent in Nevada, and likely every other jurisdiction in the United Siates.
Proper parties should be included in Jawsuits affecting their rights or responsibilities and proper
personal and subject matier jurisdiction should be obtained over all pariies in such lawsuits.

Caroline admitiedly undersiands the importance of obtaining in rem jurisdiclion over &

trustes of & trost pursnant to NRS 184,010, because she asks this Court to assume hwrisdiction of

the FHT pursuant to this statutory authority. Notwithstanding this admission, she sought
d & ; E

jurisdiction over Christopher Davis, individeally, as trastee of the Revocable Trust, and as
i ¥ s

manager for FHT Heldings without even bothering to properly sevve theni with personal service
pursuant o NRCP 4. Furthermore, Caroline failed 1o serve the custodian of the Ashley Caoper
Life Insurance Policy of which she claimas provided the loans w the FHT. Caroline did not even
properly serve Tarja (a mandatory beneficiary for purposes of consent to the purporied First

Fa

Amendment) properly under 135.010, which faliure further venders a fatal blow to any finding

ks

that Tarja subsequently acquiesced to purported First amendment which she never consented to |

in the first place. The aforementioned pariies were admitiedly never even properly served by !
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Caroline, and therefore her Petition must be dismissed for lack of proper jurisdiction over these
parties.
Notice and service of process were never property given 1o these parties, and the Court is

-

herefore, Caroline’s claims 1 her Petition must be dismissed.

T

without furisdiction over them.
F. The Alaska Trustees are Indispensible Parties and Meet NRCY 19 Requirements;
therefore, without a Joinder of these Parties, this Matter Must be Dismissed.

In Reply to the NRCP 19 factors discussed by Caroline in her Opposition, it is evident
that Caroline belies her own statements. Caroline indicates on the one hand that Alaska and
Alasiia USA would not be “placed in a positon ju which they wounld need to protect any
interest™ while on the same page indicating that Caroling is “not now claiming any willful
misconduet or gross uegligence by Alaska or Alaska USA™ suggesting that when she obtains
any of Alaska or Alaska USA documents that possible claims are likely to foliow™ Alaska or
Alaska USA must be allowed 1o defend themselves if necessary or protect themselves from
Hability in the accuracy of information that may be provided during their tenure as Trustees of
the FHT to avoid claims of willful misconduct or gross negligence by Caroline. More
importantiy, they must be responsible for the information that Caroline seeks improperly from
Christopher.

Christopher will be subjected to double or multiple or otherwise inconsistent chiigations
in possibly many jurisdictions as a result of Caroline’s claims without the necessary parties,
Alaska and Alaska USA, joined 1o the present matter. Caroline seerus to ignore the fact that she

has now named muliiple Defendants in this matter whose interests wust ali be considered,

= See Caroline’s Opposition, Page 8, iines 2122,
* See Caroline’s Oppuosition, Page 8, iines
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especially in light of the fact that proper service has not been effectoated on them for an order or
judgment to be rendered against them in this matter.

Curiously, Caroline then requesis the Court to seek relief from Christopher individually
if the Court does find that Alaska and Alaska USA are indispensable parties. She wrongfully
asks the court to order Christopher to provide the documents that are in the possession of Alaska
and Alaska UISA’s without gaining proper jurisdiction over him individually. She wrongfully
alleges that such a request would allegedly not be prejudicial 1o Christopher and allegedly
would be an adequate remedy, although the requested documents would be in the Trustee’s
possession.

She also falsely alleges that Alaska cannot allegedly assume jurisdiction over
Christopher, erroncously citing NRCP 19(b) for this proposition.®’ With proper service to

Christopher, Caroline could obtain jurisdiction over Christopher in Alaska if Alaska has

jurisdiction over the FHT

Joinder of Alaska and Alaska USA, Inc., is necessary as previously explained in
Christopher’s Motion 1o Dismiss and herein. If their joinder is nol feasible, then this matter
must be disinissed, because they are necessary and indispensable parties to this matter.

G. The Court Cannot Assume Jurisdiction based on the Remedy of Constructive Trust

as Jurisdiction is Subject to Statutory and Due Process Limitations

¥ See Caroline’s Opposition, Page 9, lives 14-15 and fis 24.

™ See AS 13.36.375. Trustee Advisor: {a) A trust instrument may provide for the appointment of a persen to act as
an advisor to the trostee with regard to all or some of the matters relating to the property of the trust. (b} Unless the
terms of the wust instroment provide otherwise, f an advisor is appointed under (a) of this section, the property and
management of the trust and the exercise of all powers and discretionary acts exercisable by the trusteg remain
vested in the frustee as fully and effectively as if an advisor were not appointed, the trustee is not required to follow |
ihe advice of the advisor, and the advisor is not liable as or considerad to be a trustee of the trust or a fiduciary |
when acting as an advisor to the trust; See also AS 13.36.033 {8) The court has exclusive jurisdiction of
proceedings wutiated by mterested parties concernmg the internal affairs of busts. including tusts covered by (e} of
this section. Except as provided in (¢) and {d) of this section, proceedings that may be maintained under this section

24
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The Nevada Supreme Cowrt reviews jurisdictional issues de novo.” ® fo rem Jurisdiction only
allows the Court to enter judgment against specific property.’™® NRS § 164.010 provides that the
court may take in rem jurisdiction over a trust statutorily if requisite evidence is found by the
Court 1o exist. NRS 164,010 provides in pertinent part that:

. Lipon petition of any persou appoinied as trostee of an express trust by any written
instruraent other than a willl or upon petition of a settfor or beneficiary of the tust, the district
court of the county in which the trustee resides or conduets business, or in which the trust has
been domiclied, shall consider the application to confirm the appointment of the trastee and
specify the manper in which the trustes must gualify. Thereafier the cowrt has jusisdiction of the
trust as a proceeding in ren.

2. If the cowt grants the petition, it may consider at the same tme any petition for
instroctions filed with the petition for confirmation.

=)

3. Atany time, the trustee may petition the court for removal of the trust from continuing

jurisdiction of the court.

4. As used in this section, “written mnstrument” includes, without limitation, an electronic
trust as defined in NRS 163.0018

However, this Court took nu;-ﬂ ction not based upon the statutory prereguisites set forth in
NRS § 164.010, but purportediy upon the theory of constructive trust,

Without even determining whether Christopher resides or conducts business here in the

capacity of @ trustee, the Court reasoned that purportedly since action has been taken here, the !

are those cancerning the ad
other matiers invelving trusiees and benefioiaries of

»

Baker v. Lighth Juchcied Dist. Upwrd, 116 Mev, 827,38

inistration and distribution of trusts, the decharation of rights, and the determination of
St 3
31, (EG00,

2

O Cha pman v Duetsche Bank Narf Trase Co., 303 P34 L0, 1106 2013}
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Court had the power 1o construct a trust and take jurisdiction. However, & constructive trust is a
remedy the court can pronounce after establishing jurisdiction, not a means 1o obtain it.

In order to create a constructive trust the conrt must first have jurisdiction over the property.
Here, the Court bas no valid basis for jurisdiction over the Trust property. The change in sifus is
facially deficient because it does nol have umanimous consent of all beneficiaries nor does it
have the consent of an Alaska trustee provided after obtaining an opinion of counsel.
Additionaliv, the sole asset of the trust, the Ashiley Cooper Life Insurance Policy, is not within
the state of Nevada, Finpally, with an invalid change in stius the trust is still an Alaska trust, the
role of investment trust advisor does not exist, and there i3 no connection whatsoever to Nevada,
Alaska has jurisdiction over the trust and has the power fo create a constructive trust over any
property in Nevada. This Court simply did not have jurisdiction to create a coustructive trust
and therefore cannof exercise jurisdiction over the Trust or Christopher DL Davis based on the
theory of constructive trust.

Even improbably assuming arguends that there is some basis for in rem jurisdiction, where a

state stature authorizes consent to jurisdiction based upon 4 finding of iz rem jurisdiction, that

statute is still subject o the requirements of federal due g,:r(.»c.fzss.'11 Federal due process requires

that the defendant has purposely developed substantial minimum contacts with the forum state
and that the assumption of iurisdiction does not violate Uaditional notions of justice and fair
play.”” NRS §163.5555 provides that:

If a persor accepts an appointment Lo serve as a trust protector or a trust adviser of a trust

subject to the laws of this State, the person submits to the jurisdiction of the courts of this
State, regardless of any term to the contrary in an agreement or justnament, A frust protector

ath Cir, 2000

.

¥ Doev, Unpeal Corp., 298 F.34 915, 9

o~
“La

3
it
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or a trust adviser may be made a party to an action or proceeding arising out of a
s . i . 3 . & -
decision or action of the trust protecior or trust adviser.” ( emphasis added).

Assuming the untenable position that this Court had jurisdiction to create a constructive
trust, this fact standing alone does not provide a basis for jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis.
NRS § 163.5555 provides jurisdiction over trust advisors, however the trust adviser may only be

made a party to an action or proceeding based upon a determinant decision or action.

In order to understand the exient of jurisdiction granted under NRS § 163.5553, several
factors must be considered. First, this statute must be read in conjunction with NRS § 164.010
which only provides the court limited in rem jurisdiction over trusts. Therefore, jurisdiction
under NRS 164010 acts a condition precedent to a finding of jurisdiction under NRS
§163.5555, where the powers of an advisor are simply a subset of the overall fiduciary powers
granted to a trustee, who may be confirmed under NRS 164.010.

Second, in order for NRS § 163.5555 to provide for jurisdiction over the trust advisor, it
must comply with the requirements of federal due process. These requirements include a finding
that the defendant has sufficient minimum contacts with the forum state. that the defendant
purposefully availed himself of the laws of the forum state and that the assumption of
jurisdiction does not offend traditional notions of justice and fair play. This court made no
findings of minimal contacts, purposeful availment, or whether jwisdiction would offend
notions of justice and fair play. The statute itself highlights that fact that a “trust adviser may be
made a party to an action or proceeding arising out of a decision or action.” Clearly, if the
decision or action causing sufficient minimum contacts with the Trust in the state of Nevada is

absent, there can be no jurisdiction over the trust adviser. This means, in effect, that liability is

¥ Mev. Rev. Stat. § 163.5855

PETAPP000473




s S I o B e

~J

11
i2
i3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

tied to the decisions made by the advisor in the capacity of trust advisor. Therefore, this Court’s
exercise of jurisdiction over Christopher in his purported role as invesiment adviser is improper,
as there is no evidence of any decision or action with the Trust in the state of Nevada.

This Court also lacks jurisdiction over Christopher as manager of FHT boldings. Assuming
the court finds that the change in situs was not deficient or that it can legitimately assume
Jurisdiction over the Trust based on a theory of constructive trust and that NRS § 163.5555
allows the court to assume jurisdiction over Chris as investment trust adviser, the Court still did
not properly establish jurisdiction over Christopher in his role as manager of the FHT. There is
no statute that grants in rem jurisdiction individually over the manager of an LLC solely based
on his or her acceptance of an officer’s position. Additionally, as discussed above, due process
requires a finding of minimum contacts, purposeful availment and that jurisdiction does not
offeud the notions of justice and fair play. Again this court entered no such findings 1o justify
jurisdiction over Christopher as manager of the LLC. Christopher respectfully requests that this
Court reconsider its order and grant his requested relief.

HLCONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Christopher respectfully requests the Court do the following,
1. Reconsider the Order filed June 24, 2015, and grant Christopher 1. Davis’s motion to
dismiss pursuant to NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19;
2. Reconsider the Order filed June 24, 2015, and vacate its finding of jurisdiction over
Christopher D. Davis in his role as investment trust advisor and in his role as manager of
FHT Holdings, LLC;

Reconsider the Ovder filed June 24, 2015, and find that this Court lacks jurisdiction over

Lod

the Trust and over Chiristopher D). Davis based on the lack of condition precedent in the

28

PETAPP000474




LCal v o T« SR 1 B U T S N

e -
(5 B "SR TOSE X S A

s
a3

i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
28
27
28

form of a failure to procure unanimous consent by the Trust beneficiaties to change the
Trust situs purportedly effectuated by the First Amendment dated February 24, 2014,
andfor alternatively, based upon lack of statutory prerequisites as defined wnder NRS
§164.010 to form a basis for jurisdiction andior lack of detenminant action or decision
under NRS §163.5555 by the purported trust adviser.

DATED this 14 day of July, 2015,

Respectiully Submitted,
RoLAND Law FiIRm

\....\'..:,v

F%arr:ez H, @3 wm, Beg
NV Bar No, 34

2470 E. St Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, WV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8902
hroland@relandla wf:n m.com

Attorney for Christopher B. Davis
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that T am an employee of Anthony L. Barney, Lid., and not & party to this action.
[ further certify that except as otherwise noted on July 14, 2015, 1 served the foregoing
NOTICE OF PETITION AND PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATON OF THE ORDER
DATED _MAY 19, 2015 RE: PETITION TO ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER THE
BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE TRUST DATED JULY 28. 2000, AS
AMENDED ON FEBRURARY 24, 2014, TO ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER
CHRISTOPHER B. DAVIS AS INVESTMENT TRUST ADVISOR, STPEHEN K.
LEHNARDT AS DISTRIBUTION TRUST ADVISOR, TO CONFIRM DUNHAM
TRUST COMPANY AS DIRECTED TRUSTEE, AND FOR IMMEDIATE
DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION FROM CHIRSTOPHER D.

DAVIS, by first class US mail, postage prepaid, upon the following persons or entities:

Tarja Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Curcle

Las Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City. Missouri 64108

Ace Davis

c/o Winfield B. Davis

366-6 Habu Aridagawa Arida
Wakayama 643-0025

JAPAN

Christopher 1. Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Los Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.

Resgistered Agent for FHT Holdings, LLC, a Nevada Linited Liability Company
4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2

l.as Vegas, Nevada 89103

Stephen Lehnardt

20 Westwoods Drive
Liberty, Missouri 64068

........................................

30
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DUNHAM TRUST

¢/c SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA
241 Ridge Street, Suite 100

Reno, Nevada 89501

Winfield B. Davis

366-6 Habu Aridagawa Arida
Wakayama 643-0023

JAPAN

Mark Sclomon, Esq.

Joshua Hood, Esq.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD,
9060 W, Cheyenne Ave,

Las Vegas, NV 85129

11 Attarney for Petitioner Caroline Davis

woOow sy e W N

=
<o

12
Charlene Renwick, Esq.

13 Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garefale
14 7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
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21 Ediloyee of Anthony L. Barney
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Electronically Filed

DECL 07/28/2015 09:23:11 AM

Tarja Davis .
3005 North Beverly Glen Circle (&“ i.%«n«—-
Los Angeles, California 90077

Appearing Pro Per CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
[n the Matter of: Case No.: P-15-083867-T
The Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust,

dated July 28, 2000 Dept. 26

DECLARATION OF TARIA DAVIS

I, Tarja Davis, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury the following:

I. | am over the age of majority. and my current address is 3005 North Beverly Glen Circle
in Los Angeles California, 90077.

2. 1 am the wife of Christopher D. Davis.
Christopher D. Davis and | were married on February 22, 2012 in Los Angeles County

(¥5)

and | have attached a copy of my marriage certificate to this affidavit.
4. We have been living together since our marriage to one another in 2012.
As the spouse of the Christopher D. Davis, [ am a beneficiary of The Beatrice B. Davis

Family Heritage Trust dated July 28, 2000, an Alaska Trust.

wn

6. | was nol informed ol any amendment to The Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust
during the time of my marriage to Christopher B. Davis and did not consent Lo move the

The Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust from Alaska to Nevada.

DECLARATION OF TARJIA DAVIS - |
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7. | was not informed of and did not consent to any change in situs of The Beatrice B. Davis
1

Family Heritage Trust from Alaska to Nevada.

Dated this A7 day of July, 2015, 7
(e —

Tarja Davis, Declaranl

DECLARATION OF TARJA DAVIS -2

PETAPP000480



CI\LLI-'OHNIA JURAT WITH AFFIANT STATEMENT

S AL STt U7 o YA O e B Ll e SR GRS L 1 PR

Ll 00 9 oot WS PEBN

LR & 5 SR ey

i See Allaches Docurnent (Notzary 1o cross oul ines 1-06 below)

I See Siatement Below (Lines -5 10 be compleled only by document signer|s). nof Molary)

A notary public or other offlicer completing tiis
cerrificate verifies only the i identity of the mdivigdeat
who signed the docunment to which 1ivis ceificate s

Sigantae of Utvmnunr Slggne Mo, l

Stater of Cahfornia

5 Y

! -’

Pl o ,
Counly of &S AT A, 00 0
Gounty ol #7272 i aaplie T

ALBERTO PEREIRA
Commmisaion # 2113383

PPhae Flitary Saeal Alpa

atiached, and not the truthfulness. accuracy, or
validity of that document.

ey prorsepis 0ty ORI

A3 e g e Ghapet el qed eepaeced Ly Live, o paays piegrel

Slgoniura of Dorurm.uu Sgnee Ho, 2 {1 any)

.

Subscribpd and sworn Lo (of allirmed) helore me on 1his

20 qayor__July w045

[FETT M fuae

//?/ A "*’/“/?Wf w7 A r"ﬂ,,‘\f:.h

Myl of Sigrice

proved lo me on ihe basis of satislaclory cvidence

1 10 be the person who appeaced beloqe me () ()
3 BY  Notary Public - Callfornia 2 : |
P \SRY/ Los Angeles County % (and
" My Comm. Expires Jun 30, 20"+ 2) -
(,_ —— e o - o = o -

g ol Shpae
proved o me on e Lasis ot *‘“!i"lz‘f,lur,f randency
te e the person who ur:pearpﬂ belore ma)

i [
~ s v g

q.Qﬂ e __._/ =%

OPTIONAL

WEH

wcouf et

1 1"”(-‘ p,

feomphztent pengen® 2 cosfiapctioont of teg foees oo gngthee clopgpimeni fep of e hee 1 tusen |
i T
urthies Phesunpting of Aoy Atlaeled Docansent |
o /g L -y
i g 14 7 S | |
At g Yy (R ERTEE r el r-",v')-f;:--. /.’,,"“ < i3, A AN D ' |
¥ |
C— gy : |
1 LT 5 i
|
. . . s . L " , "
3 i o " v 3 i [

PETAPP000481



KExhibit 1

PETAPP000482



WuSTBE LEGHLE - ARE KD

RIATE TAE NUNBER

CONFIDENTIAL
LICENSE AND CERTIFICATE OF MﬂRRIAGE
PATECTS,

Sur19002502

TCHCAL FE G8 TR TICH HUMTER

LY

1A FRET malf

10 wooE
-

04/26/1964 01

IH|| SFREY MALRAGE

10 LAST HAME AT BIRTH i€ 00 FERENT THAN 161

|earpELIR i

A LAAT MARRUADE/EIDP ENDED BY 148 QATE ENDED ABLDOCEYY)
CIEAT WSO DAMRAMENT DR SR0P 01 09717 /2010

# ADORESE
2220 COLDWATER CAMYON

BEVERLY HILLS

Syt
U STATLICOUNTRY

# 22 CODE
CALIFORMIA 30210

!CI'I'\'

| TOA FULL BSTH MAME OF FATHERPARENT
| ILMO CAELIN

:!n STATE OF BATH (7 DUTSDE U § ENTER COULNTTY)
IFTHLAND

VIA TUAL BRTH NAME OF M0 THERTARENT
PIRKRD RAEVRAAM

111G STATE OF AMTHIY QUTIDE LS ENTER COUNIRT]
I nmm

124 FEOT A
CHRISTOPHER

[ F‘B l-lDﬂL!
DEAN

TIC CLMAENT LAST
DAVIS

[ 13 GATE OF B TH pauDDCCTY| 14 nnnmmtmt
|05/26/1951 MIsaoURT =

L] Llﬁrwi.ﬁ'l WAt GO Rl e k)
‘.uun w»nmumur * 182 DATE BAOED (WMOOEC M
Triveam tmumﬂnnmmwm!ﬂsnbu

17 ADOREDS =
2220 COLDWATER CANTON

a1 fL RAME 2
1108 WINFIELD DAVEIS

|H28300'RI

: ,m STATE OF B W GUTEDE U ENTVR COUNTETT
.nruaaow.!..

e

wmmmvmwmmmwmrmm&mw
MPNOWALDOE A BT WE FURTMIR, DECLARE THAT HO LICAL

mmnmmmw mwuxmgwa

nﬁ-ugmw Ty

WARRIAGE W ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAY OF Th

L THE UAGE AIGHED, DLCLARE UD€ R PENM.TY anm WWII'M 'l'flK@ MM THAT THE AROVE-HAMED PARTH nwm BYMEN

WUST TARE PLACE N THE CCLNTY OF WA ICH THE LCENGE yiAY

SFULD AX DENTIFED B ITEM 24F AJOVE
17 DATE OF WARMAOE [MWTOCE (Y

'ne r.oun'rormnm
lws ARSELES

BTATE OF CALF QRN DEPARTMENT OF PURICHEALTH OFFICE CF WAL RECOADY

¥eAIgimiEn;

T?usnwwmv i3l this decument ik o tue cupynl thirotlcnl resend
Clark.

fileef with they Rpgisiiar-| Racm!mx:mmy

Dunc Lo

DEAN C, LOGAN
Registrar- Rmrdar ounty Clark

PETAPP000483



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

sign on an amendment where they were only appointed in that
same amendment? It’s impossibly, Your Honor.

Clearly, the trust envisioned that it was the
Alaska Trustee that would obtain advice and understanding
from counsel before they agreed to transfer the situs.
Dunham Trust couldn’t even agree to have it transferred and
administered under a situs other than Nevada because
they’re only licensed in Nevada to administer this trust
and clearly it wasn’t them.

So we know in this matter that neither the Trustee
nor the beneficiary under the trust consented. So we
didn’t have all of the beneficiaries as required. We
didn’t have the Trustee, therefore no condition precedent
of the situs actually being changed and thereby allowing
any amendment to the trust. And that was originally what I
raised in the first -- in my first pleading in the Motion
to Dismiss. I expanded upon that in our Reply where I set
forth the very parameters of what the Court needed in order
to justify jurisdiction.

In effect, Your Honor, what we have is the -- it’s
the first time I’'ve seen it in my career where someone 1s
actually asking for information obviously in the context of
an accounting not from the Trustee, Your Honor, but form
the beneficiaries, the purported beneficiaries, of that

distribution. Therein lies the concern. We'’ve got several

Page 9
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entities that have been named as supposedly distributees of
this money under the tenure of the Alaska Trustee to the
tune of $2.2 million at a time when Christopher Davis was
not a fiduciary in any capacity. And yet, now under this
purported amendment that’s clearly defective, for the
amount of $25,000 apparently that Dunham Trust received
most likely for their administration costs, that there is a
backend run to try to use this $25,000 out of the $2.2
million to obtain jurisdiction to find documents that are
in the possession of the prior Trustee who would have had
to account for that under Alaska law and yet the recipients
of that money are the ones that are being asked, under our
statute, to account -- under a trustee statute, under
164.015.

And therein lies the indispensible party dilemma
that we have. We’ve got a situation now where, A, the
whole basis of their jurisdiction is based upon a faulty
amendment that never should have occurred and to which Mr.
Lehnardt, it’s my understanding, has agreed is a faulty
amendment based upon the fact that all of the parties were
not brought to the table and the Trustee did not properly
consent.

And then we have the issue, Your Honor, that is
also concerning in that under NRCP 19 (b), we’re asking that

the case be dismissed because the parties that are asked to

Page 10
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provide the documents apparently are all indispensible
parties or not indispensible parties, according to
Caroline, but apparently are indispensible for purposes of
providing the documents that they need. None of the
service in this matter was provided properly under 164.010.

And, in fact, let’s look at the recipients that
they want to receive the funds from or get an accounting of
those funds. They want to get it from a distributee, the
Davis Family Office, which is a Missouri Corporation.

Now, Your Honor, I don’t see anything on the
service record that would indicate that that Davis Family
Office partnership was properly served. There’s no Rule 4
service. I don’t see anything that indicates that any of
the companies that are considered persons under our law
were properly served under Rule 4. They’re using the
relaxed standard of 155.010, essentially, to serve everyone
and then those people that they want documents from that
they think essentially they can dispense with, they don’t
notice it even at all.

And, so, we have a real dilemma here. One of the
important things about the 164.010 Jjurisdiction is that it
was given to courts essentially to reach out and to take
jurisdiction over property, not persons. Even in the fact
of trust proceedings, 1f we want to go against a Trustee,

we’ve got to serve personal service and get a citation on

Page 11

PETAPP000387




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the Trustee because this Court has limited Jjurisdiction,
and rightly so under the relaxed standards that are set
forth under 155.010, which is simply a mailing. There’s no
clear understanding of whether or not any of these
individuals would even receive it under the relaxed
standard, but, in this case, we know that they didn’t
receive it at all because they weren’t even noticed up.

And the ones that were noticed up, in hindsight, when they
realized, oops we forgot, we didn’t get that other
beneficiary’s consent and therefore we have the invalidity
now of the first amendment, we’re going to try to serve her
under 155.010 and send her notice through the mail at --
not upon the original motion but upon their Opposition to
the Motion to Dismiss.

And, therefore, Your Honor, I would respectfully
request that this matter be dismissed entirely for lack of
jurisdiction.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm still trying to understand
where they have an error in this amendment.

MR. BARNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: I'm looking at Article 11.

MR. BARLOW: It’s Article 14, Section 6 is where
the change of situs provision.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: 1It’s on page 14-7.

Page 12
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THE COURT: So the issue is not changing the
Trustee? That’s not what you’re arguing about?

MR. BARNEY: The --

THE COURT: Your argument changing the situs?

MR. BARNEY: The change in Trustee could
potentially be --

THE COURT: Because that doesn’t require it --

MR. BARNEY: No. That could be potentially
changed by Mr. Lehnardt but it -- but the fact is it could
not be changed under an amendment unless the change in
situs had occurred in that regard.

So, his ability to appoint a Trustee in Nevada to
work over an Alaska trust where they’re not licensed to do
so would obviously most likely be invalidated even under
that theory of whether or not he could appoint a Trustee.
Apparently, they’re appointing a Nevada Trustee based upon
a defection -- or a defective change in situs which was --
never occurred.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. BARNEY: And they did it --

THE COURT: So —--

MR. BARNEY: -- in the same amendment.

THE COURT: So: Except as expressly provided in

here in the situs of this agreement or any sub trust

established hereunder, may be changed by the unanimous

Page 13
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consent of all of the beneficiaries then eligible to

receive mandatory or discretionary distributions.

MR. BARNEY: Okavy.

THE COURT: So isn’t that just the children?
MR. BARNEY: What’s that?

THE COURT: That’s the children and who else?

MR. BARNEY: Well the --

THE COURT: In other words, Christopher -- the two

-—- who —- to the children. Who else is entitled to

mandatory or discretionary --

MR. BARLOW: No. So the children are the

mandatory dis --

THE COURT: Right.
MR. BARLOW: Beneficiaries.
THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARLOW: But the trust also provides that

their spouses and their decedents are discretionary

beneficiaries of the --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: -- trust. So that would be the

discretionary -- the spouses and decedents.

the all.

THE COURT: Okay. So —--

MR. BARLOW: Those -- that would be encompassed

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. BARLOW: And --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: If I just -- really briefly. I’'d
just add also on that point then -- so the position of the
Protector who took this and, of course, he’s very hesitant
to come and say, yeah it looks like I made a mistake, but
upon review, 1t does look like we’re missing some of the
beneficiaries.

And then the second clause of that sentence that
you Jjust started says with all the -- consent of all the
beneficiaries, then, comma, and then it also says:

With the consent of the then acting Protector --
obviously, he consented, and the Trustee that are involved.
We had an absence of Trustee actually at that point because
the previous Trustee had resigned about three months
earlier.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: So technically what should have
happened, it appears now in retrospect, is a new Alaska-
based Trustee should have been appointed in the interim for
the purpose of consenting to the change of situs to Nevada
so that that Trustee could get the advice of counsel that
was called for in that paragraph to make sure that there
were no adverse consequences. So that appears to be the

step that was missing and Mr. Lehnardt’s going to have to
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go back to the drawing board to determine whether he needs
to go now go appoint an Alaska Trustee and whether it’s
then advisable to then move it down here to Nevada if all
beneficiaries consent to do so.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: So that’s position on that.

THE COURT: Great.

MR. SOLOMON: Your Honor, I’d like to spell the
word sandbag because this i1s the first time I’ve heard the
issue that’s been raised. It’s not in their brief, despite
what Mr. Barney just said. They’ve never taken the
position that Taria [phonetic] was a beneficiary. We
understood she was divorced and first time I’'ve ever heard
it.

THE COURT: And she was the wife of --

MR. SOLOMON: Supposedly.

THE COURT: -- the grandson?

MR. BARNEY: No. She was the wife of Chris Davis.

THE COURT: But she’s not the one with the life
insurance policy?

MR. BARNEY: No.

MR. BARLOW: No.

MR. BARNEY: She is the wife of Chris Davis and
was during this period.

MR. SOLOMON: Where is the evidence of that, Your
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Honor? There is none. They didn’t file an affidavit.
They didn’t file -- they didn’t even raise this issue in
any of their pleadings. Total sandbag to wait until you
get here and say: Hold on. We all made a mistake that
we’ve been acting on for over a year.

I guess their whole theory now is that since she
didn’t consent to this amendment and Jjurisdiction here that
the whole first amendment is invalid. Chris is --
Christopher is not the --

MR. HOOD: Trust Advisor.

MR. SOLOMON: Trust Advisor, no --

MR. HOOD: Investment Advisor.

MR. SOLOMON: Investment Advisor. He’s been
wrongfully investing and holding and making all of the
decisions for this trust for the last year.

THE COURT: There’s apparently no Trustee.

MR. SOLOMON: This -- apparently there’s no
Trustee. Dunham has been administering this for the last
year without -- it’s all a big mistake because Taria
[phonetic] didn’t join in this thing, there’s not even a
line for her signature in the agreement. Mr. Lehnardt
prepared 1it, contrary to counsel’s statement, he did have
an opinion of counsel in Missouri, Mr. Bresolan [phonetic],
say that it was valid and parties went off and proceeded on

that basis. That is a -- as I said, a complete sandbag
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without any support from the record other than counsel
standing up here and making this argument at this late date
without any ability to check the facts or determine what
the heck happened here.

THE COURT: Yeah, because the change in situs it’s
done by Christopher Davis, Caroline Davis, and the copy I
have -- I don’t see the signature of Winfield [phonetic]
but --

MR. SOLOMON: It is there. There’s a signature
page in there that --

THE COURT: Was there a signature page because 1
didn’t 1it?

MR. SOLOMON: I think it’s the last page.

MR. HOOD: 1it’s one more page over.

MR. SOLOMON: One more page over. It just sort of
does a little w. That’s the way he signs on everything.
Actually there are two agreements. I can point to both
exhibits that are signed the same way that accomplish the
same thing.

Let me put this in context though. We had a
petition to assume jurisdiction over this trust to confirm
Dunham as the Directed Trustee, to confirm Christopher
individually and as manager of FHT Holdings, LLC, as the
Investment Trust Advisor, which I guess they’re going to

contend that’s not valid either because we’ll hear that was

Page 18

PETAPP000394




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

created in this last year, we also wanted to confirm
Stephen Lehnardt as the Distribution Trustee -- I'm sorry.
Distribution Trust Advisor and the Trust Protector. And we
wanted an order for immediate disclosure of the books,
records, and information from Chris -- Christopher
regarding over $2,000,000 of loans that were taken against
a $35,000,000 policy that’s owned by the trust and
apparently now signed by Dunham, who they’re claiming isn’t
the Trustee, to a wholly owned LLC called FHT Holdings
which 1s managed by Chris.

These funds were paid out or leant to Christopher
individually, to Christopher as the Trustee of the Beatrice
B. Davis Family Revocable Trust, which is another trust in
Missouri, Your Honor, which my client is a 50 percent
beneficiary and a co-Trustee of but can’t get any
information from her brother, calling for an outright
distribution. And we have now filed a proceeding in
Missouri with respect to that one because he won’t give us
any information with respect to that trust or why
distributions haven’t been sent to us because mom died over
three years ago. And then, finally, monies were leant to
Chris again as manager of the Davis Family Office, LLC.
They won’t give us information with respect to that entity.

The Family Heritage Trust’s main asset is this

Ashley Cooper [phonetic] life insurance policy for
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$35,000,000 according to notice that it was on the life of
Cheryl Davis [phonetic], a former wife of Chris’s and
there’s a $4,000,000 line of credit on it.

Article 8, Section 1 of this Trust says: Upon
these death, the trust is to split into two equal shares,
one for Caroline and one for Chris and his issue and his
spouse. So that’s interesting all by itself. That was
supposed to have already happened. I don't know if that’s
happened or not because we can’t get information as to
whether that trust is even split into two separate shares
and Christopher, his wife, if he had one, and wouldn’t even
be beneficiaries of our share.

Now, under Section 8 -- Article 8, Section 4,
Caroline is entitled to distributions of income and
principal in the discretion of the Trustee but has never
received a dime and this is extremely significant, Your
Honor. Article 12, Section 4 says:

The trust’s books and records along with all trust
documentation shall be available and open at all
reasonable times to the inspection of the trust
beneficiaries and their representatives.

Despite the fact that those books and records are

supposed to be open to beneficiaries, including one who 1is
the -- currently the sole beneficiary of her share, we

spent over three months the last quarter of 2012 trying to
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get information and documents from Christopher and his
counsel, Harriet Rowland [phonetic], regarding who got the
loan proceeds or the benefit of those, what was the purpose
of those loans, how were those loan proceeds being used,
what’s the repayment terms of the loans, has any repayment
been made, was there any collateral given, is there a
collateral agreement, is there a promissory note, is there
a loan agreement? We were virtually stonewalled. Just
stonewalled. We'’re not getting anything with respect to
this even though Caroline is entitled to half of this and
half of everything to the entities that these were leant to
with Chris’s control.

Now the Alaska Trust Company was the original
Trustee. Stephen Lehnardt was the original Trust
Protector. On August 2°%, 2011, Mr. Lehnardt, in his
capacity pursuant to the provisions of the trust, removed
Alaska Trust Company and appointed Alaska USA Trust
Company. And then two years later -- a little over two
years later, on December 5%, 2013, Alaska USA Trust Company
resigned and Mr. Lehnardt appointed Dunham Trust Company in
Reno and I think he has the right to do that, period.

On February 24w, 2014, which is Exhibit 7 to the
Motion to Dismiss, Alaska USA -- that may be a different
document than Your Honor was looking at.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. SOLOMON: Oh Exhibit 7 is a Motion to Dismiss.
I'm sorry.

[Colloguy between Mr. Solomon and Mr. Hood]

MR. SOLOMON: It’s Exhibit 5, Your Honor, I
misspoke.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: And actually it’s Exhibit 1 to the
Motion -- Christopher D. Davis’ Motion to Dismiss Exhibit
1. It’s called Release -- Resignation, Release,
Acknowledgement, Consent, and Indemnification Agreement.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: And the parties to that, contrary to
what counsel said, include Alaska USA, which is the present
Trustee, Dunham Trust, Mr. Lehnardt, Chris, Caroline,
Winfield [phonetic], and they all executed this changing
the situs -- [indiscernible] to change the situs of the
trust from Alaska to Nevada, purports to be signed by all
of the beneficiaries and it consented to Mr. Lehnardt
amending the trust to change the situs, applicable law,
provisions required by Dunham, and other amendments.

And then after this document was signed, then Mr.
Lehnardt went out and got his advice of counsel, got a
written opinion, and prepared the first amendment. And
that was dated on February 24”, 2014 and that, again, was

executed by Mr. Lehnardt, Dunham Trust, and specifically
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proved by Chris, Caroline, and Winfield [phonetic] and
that’s the document that names Chris as the Investment
Trust Advisor under NRS 163.5543, as a fiduciary under
163.554, that names Mr. Lehnardt as the Distribution Trust
Advisor under 164.5537, a fiduciary under 163.554, and then
it -- so basically it’s Chris individually or as manager of
an LLC to be owned by the trust full power to manage
investments and reinvestments of the trust and to direct
Dunham with respect to the same.

And then, finally, on March 28w, 2014, Dunham,
presumably at the direction of Chris, because that’s what
he was up -- empowered to do, created a -- the FHT Holdings
Company, naming Chris as manager and thereafter assigning
the policy to the LLC which Chris is now managing.

So, you know, we start off with the resumption of
where we were that the first amendment to the trust is
presumed valid and there was contrary to this new claim
that there was another beneficiary out there that didn’t
sign, it was never challenged until this moment, other than
to say likely that we have a burden to prove wvalidity.
That’s all they said in their moving papers, Your Honor.

We have the power -- we have the obligation to prove
validity. They didn’t specify one reason in that or in his
Reply that -- did we see a Reply?

MR. HOOD: No. He just did a Joinder in
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opposition to --

MR. SOLOMON: I don't think he --

MR. HOOD: -- our petition.

MR. SOLOMON: Counsel alluded to a Reply. I
haven’t seen a Reply.

THE COURT: I saw your Reply.

MR. SOLOMON: Yes. But I have not seen a Reply by
Mr. Barney --

THE COURT: I have no Reply from Mr. Baney.

MR. SOLOMON: -- but he alluded in his argument
that, you know, they specified the grounds for invalidity
in this motion an then reinforced them in the Reply. They
didn’t. All they said is: We have the burden to prove the
validity of the first amendment before we could move
forward and our response was: Well, take a look at NRS
47.250 subsection 18(c). There’s a rebuttal for resumption
that it’s valid. And then we said: Nobody has suggested
any particular grounds of invalidity.

And then I pointed out that Chris, who is the only
person challenging it, expressly consented to it. Not
once, but twice in two different documents you Jjust looked
at. So how can he raise it? I don't think he can even
raise this issue he’s now trying to raise with respect to
some other party, especially when he consented to it and

then he took repeated actions.
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THE COURT: Well the only person who I'm going to
have standing would be Taria [phonetic]?

MR. SOLOMON: I believe she would, assuming she is
a pbeneficiary. I don’t even know that, Your Honor. I was
advised that he wasn’t married at that time, at the time
the thing was done. He may be married now, so I gave her
notice now, but, at this time, I don't know that they were
and none of their documents suggest that she was a
beneficiary. I'm hearing it for the first time and that’s
why I stood up and said sandbag because that’s what’s
happening here.

Now, I think the Court had Jjurisdiction at least
over Dunham, irrespective of this issue, but based upon the
record that you have now, anything in front of you, all of
the beneficiaries can sign -- consented to it. This isn’t
evidence standing up here and saying this.

Nevada situs, our Court can clearly give Nevada
jurisdiction over this. It’s Nevada situs under the first
amendment, Nevada law applies, you have a Nevada Trustee.
That’s sufficient all by itself under 164.010 because it’s
doing business here. We know books and records are kept
here because contrary to counsel’s argument, the first
thing we did, Your Honor, 1is go to Dunham Trust to try to
get this information. We’re not stupid and they said: We

don’t have it. We have to get it from Chris. They
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supplied us what they have. They gave us a few indications
of what’s going on, but they don’t’ have the information.
They do have books and records of the trust though,
including they have possession of the policy and recently
transferred, as I said, to FHT Holdings Company, a Nevada
LLC.

164.010 is met. There’s in personam jurisdiction
over these people that are in front of you. 163.5555 says
that Chris and Stephen Lehnardt submitted to this
Jurisdiction by accepting their appointments as Investment
and Distribution Advisors. Again, FHT Holdings, LLC, 1is a
Nevada entity doing business here. There’s no gquestion we
have in personam Jjurisdiction.

And then this argument that Alaska Trust and
Alaska USA are somehow necessary or indispensible parties,
it’s ridiculous. When is a former Trustee a necessary or
indispensible party in any proceeding that you are not
asking for any relief from them? And the answer -- are you
telling me every time I have to do something that some
event occurred even though they’re not being asked to be
held responsible for it, I have to name them because they
have some input? Well of course not. It’s ridiculous.

Caroline i1s not objecting in her petition to any
act or admission of Alaska or Alaska USA. She seeks no

relief against them. Chris, in one capacity or another,
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received all of the money that we’re talking about here.

He has all of the information we seek about the use and the
status of those loans to him. The former Trustees are not
being placed in the position by our petition where they
need to protect their interest and no one’s being exposed
to multiple liability or prejudice, except for us, if the
Court doesn’t take jurisdiction and require him to produce
this information because Alaska Trustees are not subject to
jJurisdiction here and I don't think Alaska has jurisdiction
over Chris. There’s no reason to believe he does. This 1is
the jurisdiction.

And [indiscernible] process our statute, 164,
specifically tells you you serve it under 155.010 and we
complied in that regard.

THE COURT: Now Mr. Barlow didn’t address this
separate issue, but his issue with respect to the petition
was that it doesn’t specifically state a claim against Mr.
Lehnardt. It doesn’t --

MR. SOLOMON: I’11 over that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- allege -- okay. Mr. Barlow, you’ll
get a chance to --

MR. SOLOMON: As Your Honor knows, there wasn’t an
action until recently that we amended Chapter 164 in 1999
[indiscernible]. Prior to that date, you used to file a

petition to ask the Court to assume Jjurisdiction and you
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weren’t allowed to do anything more and all the Court could
do at the initial point was to determine whether sufficient
connections nexus to Nevada were sufficient to assume
jurisdiction and confirm the Trustees. Then you had to
file separate petitions for any type of relief.

So in 1999, we amended the statute and added
subsection 2 that says that at the same time that you file
the petition to assume jurisdiction under subsection 1, you
may file additional petitions for relief. So the law
hasn’t changed. In order to get jurisdiction over a trust,
you have to assume Jurisdiction over the trust and confirm
the Trustees or the fiduciaries. That’s what we’re doing.
I think it may have been defective i1f we didn’t try and
confirm. That’s all we’re doing is confirming the Trustees
or the Trust Protectors and the fiduciaries at this point.

One other additional petition request for relief
which is to ask for an order that Chris, who is in
possession of all of this information that belongs to the
trust, produce it to the beneficiary to whom the trust says
is entitled to it explicitly.

So, i1t 1s true that we’re not seeking any
additional relief against Stephen Lehnardt at this time but
it’s appropriate to confirm him in the role that’s done.
That gives the Court interim jurisdiction over this and if

we can’t get the information that we need from Chris for
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any reason, we certainly intend to seek it from Mr.
Lehnardt and if we have to use another petition to do that
or discovery to do that, we will and that’s appropriate to
do and we don’t have to re-file a petition to confirm him
as Trust Protector, which is a step that we are
accomplishing now.

We know that Mr. Lehnardt was intimately involved
in these loan transactions and we put that in our Reply,
Your Honor. There’s designation after designation in his

time sheet showing that he was involved in these

transactions. So he is presumable a repository of some
information. We just wanted to get it from the horse’s
mouth, the person who actually got the use -- apparent use

and benefit of these proceeds first, which is Chris, and
hopefully that will satisfy our inquiry. But 1f we have
additional issues and have additional claims of Mr.
Lehnardt, then we i1if are, based upon a Court order,
confirming him as the fiduciary, we can proceed.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: So that’s where I think we are, Your
Honor.

There i1is nothing before this Court at this point
that in any way, shape, or form shows the petition that we
didn’t [sic] file is not proper in every respect. They had

the burden to come in here to show that anything was
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invalid and they haven’t done that. There’s no evidence
before this Court at this point and I -- you know, if this
were, in fact, invalid, what if -- there would be a, you
know, I haven’t had a lot of time to ruminate about this
because I'm just hearing it for the first time, but there
would be a constructive trust here anyway. This has been
operated -- this trust has been in Nevada for over a year
and huge transactions, including the assignment of a
$35,000,000 policy all taken place. There’s a whole slew
of actions that have taken place by the very people who are
now coming here and saying: Oh, well, it’s all invalid.
Without presenting any evidence whatsoever of why it’s not
true or is in fact true and I think our petition should be
granted, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Barlow.

MS. RENWICK: Your Honor, if I may?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. RENWICK: Charlene Renwick on behalf of Dunham
Trust.

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. RENWICK: I do have to agree with Mr. Solomon
with respect to the issue, the invalidity of Dunham Trust
being appointed as the successor Trustee. I don’t believe
that issue was clearly addressed in the moving papers, to

which extent, I did not respond to it as I didn’t
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understand that was that argument that was going --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. RENWICK: -- to be raised before the Court
today.

To the extent that the Court is being asked to
determine whether the assignment to Nevada was wvalid, I
request that the hearing be continued and that a briefing
schedule be provided to the parties so that we can properly
address that --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. RENWICK: -- address that issue.

THE COURT: Good point. Thank you. All right.
Mr. Barlow.

MR. BARLOW: Your Honor, Jjust briefly because I
think our role in this is really [indiscernible] here, but,
again, the issues about the wvalidity of the first amendment
were raised to us just yesterday for the first time and I
went through the analysis of the trust and it appears that
there are problems with the first amendment as far as the
consents that were necessary to do that. That’s where that
came from.

Our concern, 1f the Court is tending toward taking
jJurisdiction of this in some manner, 164.010 only requires
the Court to assume Jjurisdiction -- or excuse me, to

confirm the appointment of the Trustee. If the Court wants
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to confirm the appointment of Dunham Trust Company, then
you have a Trustee that you confirmed the appointment of in
this matter.

There -- in his capacity as the Trust Protector
and Trust Advisor, he may be a fiduciary under the statute,
not necessarily the Trustee in that situation. And Mr.
Solomon himself just said, in response to the question, I
don’t need to bring in these two Alaskan Trustees because
I'm not bringing any claims against the Alaska Trustees.
Well why is he trying to bring Mr. Lehnardt into this as
well 1if he’s not bringing any claims -- admittedly not
bringing any claims against Mr. Lehnardt?

THE COURT: Oh but he might be amending this if
the issue i1s that Mr. Lehnardt screwed up moving it.

MR. BARLOW: Maybe. But that’s the point. If he
has a claim, bring the claim and bring us in.

Court Right.

MR. BARLOW: But he -- don’t bring us in and make
us sit here and wait --

THE COURT: Doesn’t he have a point that when you
move a trust, even 1f ineffectually you move a trust,
Dunham takes it over, they start operating, they assumed
they are responsible as a Trustee. There’s all this
activity that goes on. Doesn’t this Court in this

jurisdiction, doesn’t that give me Jjurisdiction? I mean, I

Page 32

PETAPP000408




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

-- you know, you’re kind of somewhat changing your position
on this, but originally it seemed -- 1t was my
understanding that it was conceded that even though your
client had come to this jurisdiction, you weren’t -- didn’t
think that they necessarily needed to be in the case, but
that the case was -- it was properly in this jurisdiction.

MR. BARLOW: If the first amendment is valid --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: -- and were going to be treated as
valid, then we’re operating under 163, which sets out what
happens in these [indiscernible] jurisdiction, things of
that nature. It does say that a --

THE COURT: Well doesn’t this Court have to assume
it’s valid absent some evidence? I don't know who Taraja
[phonetic] is or however her name is pronounced.

MR. BARLOW: Taria [phonetic].

THE COURT: Taria [phonetic]? Okay.

MR. BARLOW: Right. And --

THE COURT: She’s not mentioned anywhere.

MR. BARLOW: And, at this point, we --

THE COURT: Doesn’t seem to be a big life
insurance policy on her life. Who is she?

MR. BARLOW: By the representations of counsel,
that’s -- as Ms. Renwick Jjust suggested, maybe there may be

further briefing required to get that information in front
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of the Court and sort that particular issue out.

If we're going to assume that’s it valid and go
back to the original argument we had originally made in our
Opposition, when Mr. Lehnardt accepted the employment as
Distribution Trust Advisor under NRS 163, yes that -- the
statute does say he submits to the jurisdiction of Nevada.
I've submitted to the jurisdiction of Nevada. Your Clerk
has submitted to the jurisdiction of Nevada. It doesn’t
mean that we are -- that you have to observe that
Jurisdiction over them in this case just to make us sit
around with no claims being brought against us.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: And that’s the point. Just because
there i1s jurisdiction in Nevada, doesn’t mean you should
exercise it over Mr. Lehnardt where there are no current
claims against him or they’re not --

THE COURT: Because, I mean, it did --

MR. BARLOW: -- asking for any information from
him.

THE COURT: -- occur to me that -- well, nothing
is mentioned but just out of -- is that a grounds to

dismiss it or does it just require more definite statement?
MR. BARLOW: I’'m just saying in this situation
that Mr. Lehnardt doesn’t need to be a party to this case.

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. BARLOW: Okay. Until an order or something --

THE COURT: At this point?

MR. BARLOW: That’'s --

THE COURT: If I said -- if there is this issue
that this was somehow missed, --

MR. BARLOW: Right.

THE COURT: -- that there’s a central person --

MR. BARLOW: If there --

THE COURT: -- missed --

MR. BARLOW: -- are claims brought against him, if
-- some other basis to bring something that would make him
be necessary to this action, then revisit that when that
arises, but as it stands right now, there’s no point in
making him just come here and hang out and --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: -- sit around and wait to be -- to
have a claim brought against him.

THE COURT: Understood. Okay. Mr. Barney.
Interesting.

MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

You didn’t really give me a chance to answer the
question that you had asked previously about the trust and
changing the trust situs. You began to read it. It says:

Expressly as under Article 14, Section 6, changing

the trust situs, such as expressly provided herein, the
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situs of this agreement or any sub trust established
hereunder may be changed by the unanimous consent of
all of the beneficiaries.

It didn’t say the majority consent. It said the
unanimous consent, okay, of all of the beneficiaries.

Then eligible to receive mandatory and

discretionary distributions of net income.

Now, there have been allegations of sandbagging
and yet my Motion to Dismiss hit on this very issue right
out of the gate. I said: In order for this Court to take
proper Jjurisdiction over this case, there was a condition
precedent that had to have been met and it wasn’t met. And
therefore, the Trust Protector could not amend this
instrument by written action to change the references to
[indiscernible] references to such new situs or the law of
such new situs and take such action as may be required to
conform the terms of the agreement of this trust.

That’s exactly what happened in this amendment.
It was changed purportedly without the consent of
Christopher Davis’ wife who was a discretionary distributee
and included as part of the all requirement.

Now, the person that drafted that amendment, the
purported first amendment, has already indicated that it
was defective. He stands here today and says: It was

defective. Okay. He didn’t get all of the necessary
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requirements of all of the beneficiaries.

THE COURT: But your client acted on it.

MR. BARNEY: The --

THE COURT: Your client did things based on the
assumption that he had this new role and this amendment.
He accepted the role.

MR. BARNEY: And under what legal theory would --
with him without independent counsel would he be able to
effectuate a document that by the terms of the trust
couldn’t be effectuated? He clearly isn’t res judicata
because there was no prior proceeding. Okay. And our
courts have been very clear about the res judicata
requirements.

Under this situation, Chris was clearly under a
mistake that this could have been done and it wasn’t -- the
irony of this whole situation is for an argument of res
judicata even to have grounds, they would have had to
follow the statute in Alaska that was succinctly set forth
in my moving papers. They could have gone to the Court.
They could have ratified the amendment in Alaska. They
didn’t. And, in fact, when it became defective, what Mr.
Solomon offered was a document dated February 2014, after
his admitted document that he put in before where the
Trustee resigned on December 50, Okay?

So on December 5m, 2013, Mr. Solomon alleges in
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his moving papers, in his petition, and also in his
documentary evidence that he provided to the Court that
this Trustee had in fact resigned two months earlier. And
so, what I did in my Motion to Dismiss, was I put the Court
on notice of that very fact. Not to hide the document, but
to actually put the Court on notice that this document was
invalid. It couldn’t have been signed by a Trustee who had
already advocated and had no authority to sign on that
amendment.

And with that, --

THE COURT: But Mr. Solomon’s constructive trust
point is that if that has to be litigated, whether this was
a valid amendment or not, doesn’t the Court still have to
take jurisdiction so that we can litigate that? Because
your clients acted on it. They’ve moved -- they turned
this over to Dunham. They’re acting as the Trustee.
There’s all this activity taking place based on the
assumption that it was valid. You client’s now coming in
and saying all that activity I took was based on a void
document. So everything I have done is wrong. Mr.
Lehnardt screwed up because he did this wrong.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I'm --

THE COURT: Everything we’ve done is wrong. We
shouldn’t have taken any of the action that we took. It’s

all wrong, but you can’t sue us for it because it’s all
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wrong.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, on numerous occasions --

THE COURT: It doesn’t make any sense.

MR. BARNEY: On numerous occasions we’ve had the
Court look at situations that were admittedly all wrong and
we’ve had to go back and we’ve had to fix it. And, in this
case, 1t needs to go back to Alaska so that they can fix
it.

I've got no objection. If the Alaska Trustee
that’s appointed with power and authority that hasn’t
already resigned wants to change the situs and they have an
opinion from their counsel, you know, in Alaska that moving
it down to Nevada 1s a great idea and that we get all of
the signatures on that paper that are requisite under the
terms of the trust, I’ve got no objection to this Court in
a situation like that taking Jjurisdiction but that didn’t
occur in this situation and the idea that --

THE COURT: But we’ve already got a Nevada —--

MR. BARNEY: -- things have happened --

THE COURT: -- Trustee acting as Nevada Trustee on
the assumption they were acting under a valid amendment and
change of situs. They’re acting on that. They’re taking
instruction apparently from your client.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, they were an independent

professional fiduciary that has the right to counsel before
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they sign any document. I'm not going to propose that --

THE COURT: Right, but --

MR. BARNEY: -- my client had any duty --
THE COURT: -- the fact is there --
MR. BARNEY: -- or Mr. Lehnardt, for that matter,

had any duty to Dunham Trust --

THE COURT: I’'m not saying they did.

MR. BARNEY: -- for their --

THE COURT: I'm saying that doesn’t this Court
have jurisdiction because Dunham i1s operating under the
assumption hat these guys gave me a document that they
reported -- they purported to me and hold out to me as
being valid because -- how -- they were told. That’s your
point is shouldn’t I have a chance to argue this and brief
this because nobody told me there is a wife out there
somewhere?

MR. BARNEY: So, if I’'m understanding you
correctly, you’re saying that Dunham should be appointed as
a Trustee to respond to the 25,000 out of the $2.2 million
that occurred up in Alaska? Because that’s really what
they’re asking. They’'re saying that, in essence, there was
$25,000 supposedly in a loan and they’re asking for the
information regarding that $25,000 loan supposedly that
Dunham received and the irony of the whole situation of --

and that was argued, and which is completely false, is
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supposedly it was received by FHT Holdings that supposedly
was established by -- actually it was established by
Dunham. Okay? Dunham is the sole member of that.

Now, the idea of -- you said earlier -- you said:
Well I don't know Taria [phonetic]. Your Honor, with all
respect, I don't think that matters that you know whether,
you know, the identity of Taria [phonetic]. The fact is
that they knew who Taria [phonetic] was. They put her on
the notice for their Opposition and ironically that didn’t
even -- that wasn’t even proper under 155.010 because she
wasn’t given the requisite period. So they knew about her
because they were the ones that noticed her. Not us,
originally, because the fact is she was -- she wasn’t made
a party to this but she was a beneficiary that required her
consent in order for this Court to take jurisdiction.

And the idea that things have happened, Your
Honor, things happen all of the time. That’s what courts
are about and that’s what litigation is all about. It’s
attempting to right the wrongs that have happened, but, in
this case, by assuming jurisdiction over a trust amendment
that is clearly defective by the drafter’s own words -- by
the drafter’s own counsel they’ve admitted is defective in
order to transfer jurisdiction, I think this Court would be
stepping outside of what authority it’s been given under

164.010 to take jurisdiction.

Page 41

PETAPP000417




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

And if the Court is inclined to want us to brief
this, I’d be more than happy to brief this, Your Honor. In
fact, when you were newly called, I actually prepared a
brief for you on this very issue with regard to interim
jurisdiction on an in personam matter and I’d be happy to
reply to this and indicate, but clearly this matter must be
dismissed under the facts that we have. Even the evidence
that’s been presented actually lends credence to the fact
that this amendment was improper.

THE COURT: Okay. Well my problem here is that
everybody relied on it as being proper and Dunham has been
acting in good faith on the assumption that they’re the
properly appointed Trustee, that situs has been changed and
they’re the proper Trustee. And now you’re coming in here
and saying: Oh, I, as Trust Protector, or whatever -- or
Trust Investment Protector, whatever your client’s role is,
whatever Mr. Lehnardt’s role is, we were all wrong. We did
this wrong because we forgot Chris was married.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, vyou’re --

THE COURT: Ah, what?

MR. BARNEY: -- assuming that my client even had
counsel to know what was going on in this and the fact is
he --

THE COURT: I'm not saying he did have counsel or

didn’t have counsel.
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MR. BARNEY: He was not. He was --

THE COURT: He knows whether he’s married or not.

MR. BARNEY: He does know whether he’s married or
not, but the fact is he is not --

THE COURT: I have no affidavit in front of me
telling me that he is married, that the marriage was valid
at the time, that she was therefore entitled to take under
-- I mean, I don’t have anything. All I have is the
Trustee that’s acting apparently based on instructions from
you and Mr. Lehnardt dealing with this trust having been
told we have a valid change of situs. They’re acting in
reliance on it. They assume they’ve got proper authority
and now you’re coming in here and saying: All of those
things I’'ve told you to do in the last year, I was wrong.

I never should have told you to do those things because I
don’t have a valid authority. Oocops. My bad. Let’s go
back to Alaska and fix it.

Well okay. Go back to Alaska and fix it, but, in
the meantime, I think I have jurisdiction of -- at least as
put by Mr. Solomon, at least we have the constructive trust
because it’s here. There is --

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, --

THE COURT: -- action you’ve taken here.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, I would respectfully

disagree in the fact that we have demonstrated the actual
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drafter of the amendment has admitted that it is incorrect.

Now, 1if somebody wants to bring an action for
unjust reliance or they want to bring a claim of that sort,
let them do it in the proper fashion and serve them
pursuant to Rule 4 to get proper jurisdiction over these
parties.

However, we have the truth and the fact that they
noticed up the wife. They clearly knew who the wife was.
They’re the first ones who noticed the wife in this
proceeding. She was the wife. She was the wife during the
period of the reported first amendment. The drafter of
that amendment has admitted that neither an acting Trustee
nor all of the beneficiaries that were required did sign
and that it was invalid.

Any presumption that would be there has been
clearly rebutted. We have the person that drafted it. We
have the notice that was given by Caroline to Taria
[phonetic] on -- and it wasn’t timely notice, which would
invalidate, you know, the proceeding in that regard, but
they did know who she was and the idea that we sandbagged
when they came up with the notice first, really shocks the
conscience, Your Honor, because --

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Solomon, do you have
anything further to say on your Petition to -- for

Jurisdiction?
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MR. SOLOMON: Just one. I’'1ll give you another
basis to get where we need to go.

They just admitted their own downfall. Taria
[phonetic] was given notice of this proceeding timely and
she’s had the full time to do it and she has never
objected. She has never raised that she didn’t know about

this, didn’t consent to it, was even married at the time.

Now she --
THE COURT: Isn’t she in Japan? Is she in Japan?
MR. SOLOMON: No. I think that’s --
THE COURT: Somebody’s in Japan.
MR. SOLOMON: Windield [phonetic].
THE COURT: Windield [phonetic] is in Japan.
MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, but -- and I don't know where
MR. HOOD: California or Missouri.
THE COURT: Oh. 1It’s the person with the two
houses.

MS. HOOD: Taria [phonetic].

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah. This --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- 1is Christopher’s -- step up, the
father, who 1s apparently --

THE COURT: okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -— now married. I don't know how
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long he’s been married. I’ve never —-- this i1is the first
time.

But the point is she has full notice, never
objected. She’s waived her objection by not appearing and
not making that. The only person here objecting is the
person who acted upon it and never, ever raised this issue
until you got in front of this Court on this hearing.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, I guess my concern is --
and this is -- where I think counsel has indicated that
they would like a chance to be heard on this and brief
this. I think I have to take jurisdiction over this at
least under a theory of constructive trust because they’ve
been relying on this in good faith thinking they’re
operating properly and all of a sudden they’re being told,
by the very people who made that representation to them,
oops, my bad, even though my sister knew I was married, she
who -- I don't know if she had legal counsel telling her
anything, but I didn’t have legal counsel -- or at least
his attorney says he didn’t have legal counsel, so I didn’t
know -- needed it. So she went and hired and is now saying
maybe I messed up here. I mean, but everybody’s been
relying on that.

MR. SOLOMON: And you don’t have the evidence.

All you have --

THE COURT: And acting on 1it.
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MR. SOLOMON: =-- 1is a statement.

THE COURT: And so I just —--

MR. SOLOMON: There is no evidence at this point
other than --

THE COURT: It’s -- I just have a real problem
with this --

MR. SOLOMON: -—- that.

THE COURT: -- in saying that there’s no
Jurisdiction because there’s no Trustee in Alaska. The
only Trustee 1is here.

MR.

THE

SOLOMON : It’s true.

COURT: And that’s my problem with tis -- you

have a trust with no Trustee.

MR.

THE

BARNEY : Your Honor, --

COURT: If I follow your theory, Mr. Barney,

you have a trust with no Trustee and --

MR. BARNEY: And the Court --
THE COURT: -- and your client has been acting
without any authority and this is -- I mean, do you

seriously want us to go down that road?

MR.

of the trust

THE

MR.

THE

BARNEY: I do, Your Honor, and under the terms

COURT: Okay.
BARNEY : -— if the Protect --

COURT: I think that -- doesn’t that expose
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your client to huge liability?

MR. BARNEY: If the Protector does not appoint a
Trustee, they can come together unanimously and they can
appoint a Trustee.

The whole idea is -- what you’re saying, Your
Honor, is: Okay, well, there would be no Trustee. Do you
know how many trusts come before us where there is no
Trustee and the courts appoint a Trustee? Numerous times.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: A Trustee dies. There is no Trustee
for a certain period.

THE COURT: Yeah, but there’s no Trustee in
Alaska. We have a Trustee.

MR. BARNEY: The Trustee could be appointed in
Alaska by the very terms of the --

THE COURT: Okay. Okay.

MR. BARNEY: -—- trust.

THE COURT: I’'m done, Mr. Barney.,. I"'m done.

MR. BARNEY: Okay.

THE COURT: I’'m going to take jurisdiction over
this trust and I'm going to confirm Dunham as Trustee.

But we have this issue, which they’ve asked for
the opportunity because this i1s not well developed. I
think it raises some issues. I have a real concern about

Mr. Lehnardt because I didn’t really see anything
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specifically alleged about him in this pleading. But Mr.
Barlow’s got a point. However -- we now know what the
issue is so I think we need a more definite statement.

So I'm granting Mr. Barlow alternative relief in
the form of I think he’s entitled to -- his client is
entitled to a more definite statement as to what it is
allegedly Mr. Lehnardt already did. I think we all know
it, but he’s entitled to have it in a pleading. So, Mr.
Lehnardt’s Motion i1s granted with alternative relief. We
need a more definite statement as to what it is Mr.
Lehnardt allegedly did.

MR. BARLOW: If anything.

THE COURT: If anything. He’s entitled to that.
So it’'s -- we need a more definite statement because right
now we don’t’ have anything about him. He’s right. We
need something about him.

So, the issue is Chris. My problem here, even if
it’s just constructive trust because Dunham’s acting -- as
I've indicated, I believe in a good faith reliance on what
everybody told them that here’s a valid change of situs and
trust amendment, I think that -- I appreciate this argument
that it’s all invalid and so Mr. Davis can’t be sued, but
my problem with that is he’s been acting here, I have to
assume because stuff has been going on, apparently giving

instruction to Dunham and I just think that means he’s
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consented to the jurisdiction of this Court.

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, I mean, he’s de facto at a
minimum.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. BARNEY: Your Honor, did you say that Mr.
Davis could be sued?

THE COURT: Yeah. I think he’s consented to the
jurisdiction of this Court.

MR. BARNEY: And in what capacity are you making -
- I jJust want to be clear for the record?

THE COURT: He has been acting in -- under the
assumption, and I understand your argument that it may all
be void. If so, it all gets unwound some other way but I
think I have to -- I have to take jurisdiction at this
point and we have to have some form in which this can be
litigated. I respectfully don’t think it’s Alaska. I
think it’s here because you’ve got a Trustee appointed
here. Everybody is acting on this assumption and your
client, perhaps in as good of faith as Dunham, has been
acting under the assumption that he had a role and he had
authority to take certain actions. He considered the
Jurisdiction of this Court by acting on it. So I think
he’s -- I think he can be sued here. He’s consented to it
by acting --

MR. BARNEY: And when you say he can be sued, are
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you saying in his individual capacity or are you saying --

THE COURT: That’s -- what -- I keep forgetting.
It was Investor?

MR. BARNEY: Investment Trust Advisor.

THE COURT: Investment Trust Advisor, yes.

MR. BARNEY: Because they’re not asking to sue
him. At least the pleadings I read, they’re not asking to
sue him. They’re asking for information, Your Honor, and
your -- you Jjumped to the he can be sued --

THE COURT: No. I'm saying I’ve got jurisdiction
over it. So in his capacity as this Investment Trust
Advisor, 1f they want to get records and stuff from him,
then fine. He’s consented to act in that capacity in this
jJurisdiction. Until it’s shown that, in fact, he didn’t
have that capacity, I think he’s consented because he acted
on it.

MR. BARNEY: Okay. So, Jjust to be clear, you’re
assuming jurisdiction under 164.010 in what capacity? Over
Dunham Trust?

THE COURT: Dunham Trust because there’s a trust -
- they -- the trust has been -- they took the role of
Trustee acting on an assumption that they were properly
appointed and they had a valid amendment and the change of
situs. They acted on that. Your client also acted on it

in his role of Investment Trust Advisor.
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So, to the extent that that’s a role that he was
acting in, then I think we’ve got like a jurisdiction over
him in that role because everybody was acting on that. If
it’s proven that, in fact, that’s all void because Taria
[phonetic] was entitled to be a signator, if we’ve got
evidence on that and it’s proven, then we’ve got a whole
different problem, but we’ve got to litigate that somewhere
and I don't think it’s Alaska because this trust isn’t in
Alaska. Everybody 1s operating on the assumption that it
is here. If it shouldn’t be here, that’s a problem for
another day.

MR. BARNEY: And just as a point of clarification,
when you’re indicating that you have jurisdiction, are you
-- 1s the extent of your ruling that you have jurisdiction
or that you’re just taking jurisdiction over Dunham and --
because there’s relief that’s been requested and I'm --

MR. SOLOMON: And I’'d like to get to that, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. SOLOMON: You’ve already -- you indicated that
you’re going to assume jurisdiction over Chris, --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: -- and --

THE COURT: 1In his role of Investment Trust

Advisor.
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MR. SOLOMON: I understand. Again, Article 12,
Section 4 of the trust, and nobody disputes this, says,
quote:

The trust books and records along with all trust
documents shall be available and open at all reasonable
times for the inspection of the trust beneficiaries and
the representatives.

He has not opposed that he has these type of
records in his possession. In fact, I know he does because
Harriet Rowland [phonetic] told me that she had them, that
he had produced them to her. She was prepared to turn them
over to me when he said: No, don’t give them anything.

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. So you asked for
multiple types of relief. The petition is to assume
jurisdiction over this trust. 1I'm going to assume
jurisdiction over this trust, even though, as I said, it’s
without prejudice to litigate whether it’s actually wvalidly
moved. If it’s not, then, you know, we’ve got a problem,
but it appears that everybody is acting on the assumption
that it’s here. So we have to take jurisdiction.

So, then I'm assuming jurisdiction over
Christopher Davis as Investment Trust Advisor, which is the
specific relief requested.

Stephen Lehnardt, I agree, I would also have

jurisdiction for the same analysis, but the problem is we
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don’t have a statement as to what it is he’s allegedly
done. So, for the moment, I’'m not taking jurisdiction over
him because we need a more definite statement in order to
say whether or not we can go forward against Mr. Lehnardt.

And then to confirm the Dunham Trust Company as
Directed Trustee, for now, it appears they’re acting in
good faith on what was represented to them to be a valid
amendment and change of situs. They have been acting, as
far as I can tell, nobody’s raised that that they would
have any notice. So, I think we have to confirm them.
They’re the Trustee, until it’s proven that maybe they
shouldn’t be because unknown to them there was a wife out
there.

Okay. And then the final thing was immediate
disclosure of documents and information from the Investment
Trust Advisor.

MR. BARNEY: And what would that include with
regard to those records? Clearly Alaska Trust has the
records of their tenure as Trustee for the $2.2 million.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARNEY: And they’re not a party to this

action. So —-
THE COURT: It’'s what Mr. -- it’'s what he has in
his role as Investment Trust Advisor. That’s it.

MR. BARNEY: Because they’ve alleged $25,000 was
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handled between Dunham and Christopher Davis in Nevada.

THE

COURT:

If that’s not -- you know, if that’s

not in his possession, it’s not in his possession. It’s

only what’s -- what he’s got in his possession.

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

SOLOMON :

COURT :

SOLOMON :

COURT :

SOLOMON :

COURT:

I711 prepare the --

So you’ll prepare the order. Okay?
-- order, Your Honor.

Thank you.
And I’11 submit it to counsel.

And we’ll be -- 1like I said, this 1is

all without prejudice to actually litigate and give, you

know, Dunham a chance to --

MR.
THE
MR.
and I’'d like
THE
MR.
THE
MR.
subject to a

THE

BARNEY :
COURT:
BARNEY :
to sign
COURT:
BARNEY :
COURT:

BARNEY :

Did you --
-- lay out this whole issue.
So to understand this correctly --
off on the order, Your Honor.
Sure. Absolutely. Mr. Solomon --
If that's --
-- always very good about that.

But you’re giving jurisdiction

determination of whether or not --

COURT:

Yeah. It’s without prejudice to --

allergies. Without prejudice to raise the issue.

MR. SOLOMON:

MR.

BARNEY:

I understand.

Of the validity --
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THE COURT: Properly --

MR. BARNEY: -- of the first amendment. Is that
correct?

THE COURT: Properly with evidence and -- because
right now we don’t even have an affidavit from Tarjia
[phonetic] and who knows? I don’t have her -- Taria
[phonetic].

MR. BARNEY: Taria [phonetic].

THE COURT: Thank you.

And Dunham. You know, surely they’d like to be
heard. So, you know, it’s without prejudice on that issue,
but right now, everybody is acting on it, so --

MR. SOLOMON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. RENWICK: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- we’ll litigate it all later. Thank
you all for coming in.

THE CLERK: 1Is this [indiscernible]?

THE COURT: Yes. We’re keeping it. Mr. Solomon,
specifically just for the record, Mr. Solomon specifically
requested that this be handled from its inception here and
nobody’s objected to that part. So we’'re --

MR. BARNEY: Yeah. 1I’d prefer that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You got it. Okay. We're good. We’ll
see you guys back here.

MR. BARNEY: If the Court has jurisdiction.
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THE COURT: Exactly. Subject to your right to say

I don’t have jurisdiction.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:15 A.M.

* * * * *
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CERTIFICATION

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from

the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the

above-entitled matter.

AFFIRMATION

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social
security or tax identification number of any person or

entity.

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER

Page 58

PETAPP000434




= W N

o W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS,

Petitioner

V8.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK,

AND THE HONORABLE JUDGE
GLORIA J. STURMAN,

Respondent

and

CAROLINE DAVIS,

Real Party in Interest

Case No.: Eléctronically Filed
Oct 08 2015 01:44 p,

District Cdy Lindeman
P—15—083§gﬂ ?IL #(Supreme Cq

PETITIONER’S APPENDIX

VOLUME III

Respectfully Submitted

ROLAND L IR,S/(
Ty wb/ ’)
Harriet H. Roland

Nevada Bar No. 5471

2470 E. St. Rose Pkwy, Ste. 105
Henderson, NV 89074
Telephone: (702) 452-1500
Facsimile: (702) 920-8903

hroland@rolandlawfirm.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

Respectfully Submitted,
ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD

7’/%

Anthony L Bar

Nevada Bar No 8366
3317 W. Charleston Blvd., Suite B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702) 438-7878
Facsimile: (702) 259-1116
office@anthonybarney.com
Attorney for Christopher D. Davis

Docket 68948 Document 2015-30612

,///

purt




o W N o e W N R

NNONN NN N NN R R R R R R B B RBoR
0 N oo U1 R W N B O VW 0O N o060 d W N KB O

ALPHABETICAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Volume | Exhibit | Title of Document Page ‘
Number | Number _ Numbers |
VIII 33 Addendum to and Withdrawal of Certain [ 001322- |
Statements Referenced in the: (1)Objection to | 001357
Petition for Reconsideration of the Order dated
May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to Assume Jurisdiction
Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust
dated July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24,
2014, to Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D.
Davis as Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen K.
Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor, to
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed
Trustee, and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D.
Davis; and Counterpetition for Sanctions;
(2)Amendment and Supplement to Counterpetition
for Sanctions; and (3)Motion to Amend or Modify
Order Pursuant to NRCP 60(b)(3)
\Y 16 Amendment and Supplement to Counter Petition | 000780-
for Sanctions 000794
A% 14 Case Appeal Statement 000684-
000700
VIII 26 Christopher D. Davis' Motion for Protective Order | 001 185-
and to Modify or Quash the Subpoena 001221
I 2 Christopher D. Davis' Motion To Dismiss 000283-
Pursuant To NRCP (12)(b) And NRCP 19 and | 000308
Errata _
VII 25 Christopher D. Davis' Opposition to Caroline 001139-
Davis' Motion to Amend or Modify Order | 001184
Pursuant to NRCP 60(b)(3)
VIII 37 Christopher D. Davis' Opposition to Caroline | 001373-
Davis' Motion to Strike Christopher D. Davis' | 001390

Arguments and Requests for Relief in his Reply to
Caroline D. Davis' Objection to Petition for
' Reconsideration in Excess of Thirty (30) Pages as




Ww N =

O 00 g9 o0 U s

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

217

28

the Reply Violates EDCR 2.20 and Countermotion
for Leave to File a Reply in Excess of Thirty (30)
Pages

VII

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis'
Objection to Petition for Reconsideration of the
Order Dated May 19, 2015 re: Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended
on February 24

000987-
001118

VIII

31

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis'
Opposition to His Motion for a Protective Order
and to Quash or Modify Subpoena

001307-
001313

I11

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis'
Opposition to his Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to
NRCP (12)(b) and NRCP 19

000375

7000350- |

IX

42

Court Minutes dated September 16, 2015

001539-
001541

IX

43

Court Minutes dated September 30, 2015

001542-
001543

VI

2]

Declaration Of Christopher D. Davis

000977-
000979

11

Declaration of Tarja Davis

000478-
000483

IX

45

Email from Anthony L. Barney, Esq. dated
October 7, 2015

0001549
0001551

VIII

36

Errata to Christopher D. Davis' Petition to Stay
Discovery Until the August 19, 2015 Hearing on
Motion for Reconsideration or in the Alternative,
Petition for Protective Order from Discovery by
Subpoena

001368-
001372

VI

22

Errata To Petition For Reconsideration Of The
Order Dated May 19, 2015 To Assume
Jurisdiction Over The Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, As Amended
On February 24, 2014,To Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis As Investment Trust
Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt As Distribution
Trust Advisor, To Confirm Dunham Trust

 Company As Directed Trustee, And For

- 000980-

000986




w o d oy s WM B

N NN NN NN NN R R R R KRR R R R
o N4 o0 U~ W N HF O Ww O Jd o0 ;s W N R O

Immediate Disclosure Of Documents And
Information From Christopher D. Davis

17

Motion to Amend or Modify Order Pursuant to | 000795-
NRCP 60(b)(3) 000836

39

Motion to Compel Attendance at Deposition and  001477-
Motion for Sanctions 001520

20

Motion to Compel Harriet Roland, Esq., to|000897-
Produce Documents Responsive to Subpoena | 000976
Duces Tecum; and for Attorneys' Fees and Costs

19

Motion to Hold Christopher D. Davis in Contempt 000871-
and for Attorneys' Fees and Costs 000896

30

Motion to Strike Christopher D Davis' Arguments = 001300-
and Requests for Relief in his Reply to Caroline D | 001306
Davis' Objection to Petition for Reconsideration in

Excess of Thirty (30) Pages as the Reply Violates

EDCR 2.20

13

Notice of Appeal 000679-
000683

Notice of Entry of Order 000440-
1 000445

34

Notice of Non-Appearance of Christopher D.|001358-
Davis 001363

35

Notice of Partial Withdrawal of Petition and 001364-
Partial Withdrawal of Petition to Stay Discovery 001367
until the August 19th, 2015 Hearing on Motion for
Reconsideration or in the Alternative, Petition for
Protective Order from Discovery by Subpoena |

10

Notice of Petition and Petition for Reconsideration | 000446-
of the Order Dated May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to | 000477
Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B Davis

Family Heritage Trust Dated July 28, 2000, as
Amended on February 24, 2014, to Assume
Jurisdiction over Christopher D Davis as
Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt as
Distribution Trust Advisor, to Confirm Dunham

Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and
Information from Christopher D Davis

| 18

| Notice of Petition and Petition to Stay Discovery 000837- |




o o g o o W N B

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
1.7
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

until the August' 19, 2015 Hearing on Motion for
Reconsideration

000870

15

' Objection to Petition for Reconsideration of the
Order Dated May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust Dated July 281 2000, as Amended

'on February 24, 2014, to Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis an Investment Trust

‘Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
Trust Advisor to Confirm Dunham Trust Company
as Directed Trustee and for Immediate Disclosure
of Documents and Information from Christopher
D. Davis; AND Counter Petition for Sanctions

1 000701-
000779

VIII

27

Objection to Petition to Stay Discovery Until the
August 19, 2015 Hearing on Motion for
Reconsideration or in the Alternative, Petition for
Protective Order From Discovery by Subpoena

001222-
001238

VIII

28

Opposition to Caroline Davis' Motion to Compel
Harriet H. Roland, Esq. to Produce Documents
Responsive to Subpoena Duces Tecum; Counter
Motion to Quash

001239-
001285

Vil

24

Opposition to Caroline Davis' Motion to Hold
Christopher D. Davis in Contempt and for
Attorney's Fees and Costs

001119-
001138

VIII

29

Opposition to Christopher D. Davis' Motion for a
Protective Order and to Quash or Modify
Subpoena

1 001286-
001299

Opposition to Christopher D. Davis' Motion to
Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP(12)(b) and NRCP 19

000309-
000321

Opposition to Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over
the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust, dated
July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24, 2014;
to Assume Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis
as Investment Trust Advisor and Stephen K.
Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor; to
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed
Trustee; and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D.

000322-
| 000325

' Davis, and Limited Joinder to Christopher D. |




o W 9 o e W N R

[
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22 |

23
24
25
26
27
28

Davis's Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP
12(b) and NRCP 19

111

Order

000435-
000439

[ and II

1 (pts 1
and 2)

Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice
B. Davis Family Heritage Trust Dated July 28
2000 as Amended on February 24, 2014; to
Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D Davis As
Investment Trust Advisor and Stephen K Lehnardt
as Distribution Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham

Trust Company as Directed Trustee; and for |

Immediate Disclosure of Documents and

Information from Christopher D Davis

000001-
000282

[1X

44

Proposed Order Regarding September 30, 2015
Hearing

001544-
001548

IX

41

Reply to Christopher D. Davis Opposition to
Caroline Davis' Motion to Hold Christopher D.
Davis in Contempt and for Attorneys' Fees and
Costs

001533-
001538

II

Reply to Opposition to Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended
on February 24, 2014; to Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis as Investment Trust
Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham Trust
Company as Directed Trustee; and for Immediate
Disclosure of Documents and Information from
Christopher D. Davis and Limited Joinder to
Christopher D. Davis's Motion to Dismiss
Pursuant to NRCP12(b) and NRCP 19

000326-
000349

12

Response to Petition for Reconsideration

000484-
000678

VIII

32

Supplement to Objection to Petition
Reconsideration of the Order Dated May 19 2015
RE: Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the
Beatrice B Davis Family Heritage Trust Dated
July 28, 2000 as Amended on February 24, 2014
to Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D. Davis

for | 001314-

001321




oo U s W N R

10
11
12
13
14
15

16_

L7
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

as investment trust advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt
as Distribution Trust Advisor to Confirm Dunham
Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and
Information from Christopher D. Davis and
Counter Petition for Sanctions

X 40 ‘ Supplement to Opposition to Caroline Davis' 001521-
Motion to Hold Christopher D. Davis in Contempt | 0001532
and for Attorney's Fees and Costs

IX 38 Transcript of Proceedings All Pending Motions, | 001391-
September 2, 2015 001476

[11 7 Transcript of Proceedings Motion to Dismiss: | 000376-
Motion on Christopher Davis' Motion to Dismiss 000434

Pursuant to NRCP 12(B) and NRCP 19; Petition to
Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis
Family  Trust, Assume Jurisdiction over
Christopher David as Investment Trust Advisor
and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution Trust
Advisor, to Confirm Dunham Trust Company as
Directed Trustee, and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D.
Davis April 22, 2015




oo oo W N

3

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CHRONOLOGICAL
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Volume
Number

Exhibit
Number

Title of Document |

Page
Numbers

[ and I1

1 (pts 1
and 2)

Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice
B. Davis Family Heritage Trust Dated July 28
2000 as Amended on February 24, 2014; to
Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D Davis As
Investment Trust Advisor and Stephen K Lehnardt
as Distribution Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham
Trust Company as Directed Trustee; and for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and
Information from Christopher D Davis

000001-
000282

1T

Christopher D. Davis' Motion To Dismiss
Pursuant To NRCP (12)(b) And NRCP 19 and
Errata

000283-
000308

II

Opposition to Christopher D. Davis' Motion to

Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP(12)(b) and NRCP 19 |

000309-
000321

II

Opposition to Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over
the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust, dated
July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24, 2014;
to Assume Jurisdiction over Christopher D. Davis
as Investment Trust Advisor and Stephen K.
Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor; to |
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed
Trustee; and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D.
Davis, and Limited Joinder to Christopher D.
Davis's Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to NRCP
12(b) and NRCP 19 _

000322-
000325

1I

Reply to Opposition to Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended
on February 24, 2014; to Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis as Investment Trust
Advisor and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
Trust Advisor; to Confirm Dunham Trust
Company as Directed Trustee; and for Immediate
Disclosure of Documents and Information from |

000326-
000349




a U oA W N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17 |

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Christopher D. Davis and Limited Joinder to |
Christopher D. Davis's Motion to Dismiss |
Pursuant to NRCP12(b) and NRCP 19 |

I11

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis' [000350-
Opposition to his Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to | 000375
NRCP (12)(b) and NRCP 19

II1

Transcript of Proceedings Motion to Dismiss: | 000376-
Motion on Christopher Davis' Motion to Dismiss | 000434
Pursuant to NRCP 12(B) and NRCP 19; Petition to

Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis

Family  Trust, Assume Jurisdiction over
Christopher David as Investment Trust Advisor

and Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution Trust |
Advisor, to Confirm Dunham Trust Company as
Directed Trustee, and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D. ‘

Davis April 22, 2015

11

Order 1 000435-
000439

I11

Notice of Entry of Order 000440-
000445

IV

Notice of Petition and Petition for Reconsideration | 000446-
of the Order Dated May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to ‘ 000477
Assume Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B Davis
Family Heritage Trust Dated July 28, 2000, as
Amended on February 24, 2014, to Assume
Jurisdiction over Christopher D Davis as
Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt as
Distribution Trust Advisor, to Confirm Dunham
Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for
Immediate Disclosure of Documents and
Information from Christopher D Davis

11

Declaration of Tarja Davis 000478-
000483

12

Response to Petition for Reconsideration 000484-
000678

13

Notice of Appeal 000679-
000683

14

Case Appeal Statement | 000684-




N N NN NN NN R R R = P P =R = =
o N o W = W NP O YW g o0 Bl W N O

000700

o o g o ;B W N R

15

Objection to Petition for Reconsideration of the
Order Dated May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust Dated July 281 2000, as Amended
on February 24, 2014, to Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis an Investment Trust
Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt as Distribution
Trust Advisor to Confirm Dunham Trust Company
as Directed Trustee and for Immediate Disclosure
of Documents and Information from Christopher
D. Davis; AND Counter Petition for Sanctions

000701-
000779

16

Amendment and Supplement to Counter Petition
for Sanctions

000780-
| 000794

17

Motion to Amend or Modify Order Pursuant to |

NRCP 60(b)(3)

000795-
000836

18

Notice of Petition and Petition to Stay Discovery
until the August 19, 2015 Hearing on Motion for
Reconsideration

000837-
000870

VI

19

Motion to Hold Christopher D. Davis in Contempt
and for Attorneys' Fees and Costs

"000871-
1000896

VI

20

Motion to Compel Harriet Roland, Esq., to
Produce Documents Responsive to Subpoena
Duces Tecum; and for Attorneys' Fees and Costs

000897-
000976

VI

21

Declaration Of Christopher D. Davis

1 000977-
000979

VI

22

Errata To Petition For Reconsideration Of The
Order Dated May 19, 2015 To Assume
Jurisdiction Over The Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust, Dated July 28, 2000, As Amended
On February 24, 2014,To Assume Jurisdiction
Over Christopher D. Davis As Investment Trust
Advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt As Distribution
Trust Advisor, To Confirm Dunham Trust
Company As Directed Trustee, And For
Immediate Disclosure Of Documents And
Information From Christopher D. Davis

000980-
000986

VII

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis'
Objection to Petition for Reconsideration of the

000987-
001118 |

10




o o a9 o e W N B

e =
A O =)

15
16

17 |

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Order Dated May 19, 2015 re: Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction over the Beatrice B. Davis Family
Heritage Trust Dated July 28, 2000, as Amended
on February 24

24

' Attorney's Fees and Costs

Opposition to Caroline Davis' Motion to Hold
Christopher D. Davis in Contempt and for

001119-
001138

VII

25

|
Christopher D. Davis' Opposition to Caroline |
Davis' Motion to Amend or Modify Order
Pursuant to NRCP 60(b)(3) ‘

001139-
001184

VIII

26

Christopher D. Davis' Motion for Protective Order |
and to Modify or Quash the Subpoena

001185-
001221

VIII

27

Objection to Petition to Stay Discovery Until the
August 19, 2015 Hearing on Motion for
Reconsideration or in the Alternative, Petition for
Protective Order From Discovery by Subpoena

001222-
001238

VIII

28

Opposition to Caroline Davis' Motion to Compel
Harriet H. Roland, Esq. to Produce Documents
Responsive to Subpoena Duces Tecum; Counter
Motion to Quash

001239-
001285

VIII

129

Opposition to Christopher D. Davis' Motion for a |
Protective Order and to Quash or Modify
Subpoena

001286-
001299

VIII

30

Motion to Strike Christopher D Davis' Arguments
and Requests for Relief in his Reply to Caroline D
Davis' Objection to Petition for Reconsideration in
Excess of Thirty (30) Pages as the Reply Violates
EDCR 2.20

001300-
001306

VIII

31

Christopher D. Davis' Reply to Caroline Davis'
Opposition to His Motion for a Protective Order
and to Quash or Modify Subpoena

001307-
001313

VIII

32

Supplement to Objection to Petition for
Reconsideration of the Order Dated May 19 2015
RE: Petition to Assume Jurisdiction over the
Beatrice B Davis Family Heritage Trust Dated
July 28, 2000 as Amended on February 24, 2014
to Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D. Davis |
as investment trust advisor, Stephen K. Lehnardt |
as Distribution Trust Advisor to Confirm Dunham |

001314-
001321

11




Trust Company as Directed Trustee, and for |
Immediate  Disclosure of Documents and
Information from Christopher D. Davis and
Counter Petition for Sanctions

‘ VIII

33

VIII

34

Addendum to and Withdrawal of Certain
Statements Referenced in the: (1)Objection to |
Petition for Reconsideration of the Order dated |
May 19, 2015 Re: Petition to Assume Jurisdiction |
Over the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust
dated July 28, 2000, as Amended on February 24,
2014, to Assume Jurisdiction Over Christopher D.
Davis as Investment Trust Advisor, Stephen K.
Lehnardt as Distribution Trust Advisor, to |
Confirm Dunham Trust Company as Directed
Trustee, and for Immediate Disclosure of
Documents and Information from Christopher D.

Davis; and Counterpetition for Sanctions;
(2)Amendment and Supplement to Counterpetition
for Sanctions; and (3)Motion to Amend or Modify

' Order Pursuant to NRCP 60(b)(3) ;

001322-
001357

Notice of Non-Appearance of Christopher D.
Davis

1 001358-
| 001363

VIII

35

Notice of Partial Withdrawal of Petition and |

Partial Withdrawal of Petition to Stay Discovery |
until the August 19th, 2015 Hearing on Motion for

Reconsideration or in the Alternative, Petition for

Protective Order from Discovery by Subpoena

001364-
001367

VIII

136

Errata to Christopher D. Davis' Petition to Stay\
Discovery Until the August 19, 2015 Hearing on |
Motion for Reconsideration or in the Alternative,
Petition for Protective Order from Discovery by
Subpoena

001368-
001372

VIII

37

Christopher D. Davis' Opposition to Caroline
Davis' Motion to Strike Christopher D. Davis'
Arguments and Requests for Relief in his Reply to
Caroline D. Davis' Objection to Petition for
Reconsideration in Excess of Thirty (30) Pages as
the Reply Violates EDCR 2.20 and Countermotion
for Leave to File a Reply in Excess of Thirty (30)
Pages

12

001373-
001390




O 0 g9 o s W N R

NNNN RN RN NN B R R R R R B B B R
@ =N o U s W N H O W O N e s W N K O

IX 38 Transcript of Proceedings All Pending Motions, | 001391-
September 2, 2015 . 001476
IX 39 Motion to Compel Attendance at Deposition and | 001477-
Motion for Sanctions 001520
IX 40 Supplement to Opposition to Caroline Davis' | 001521-
Motion to Hold Christopher D. Davis in Contempt | 001532
and for Attorney's Fees and Costs
IX 41 Reply to Christopher D. Davis Opposition to 001533-
Caroline Davis' Motion to Hold Christopher D. | 001538
Davis in Contempt and for Attorneys' Fees and
Costs _
IX 42 Court Minutes dated September 16, 2015 001539-
001541
IX 43 Court Minutes dated September 30, 2015 001542-
001543
IX 44 Proposed Order Regarding September 30, 2015  001544-
Hearing 001548
IX 45 Email from Anthony L. Barney, Esq. dated 0001549-
October 7, 2015 0001551

13




3% ]

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Anthony L. Barney, Ltd., and not
a party to this action. I further certify that, on the 8™ day of October 2015, I

served the foregoing PETITIONER’S APPENDIX VOLUME III upon the

following persons or entities as follows:

o 0 g o ;s W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Cheryl Davis
5403 West 134 Terrace, Unit 1525
Overland Park, KS 66209

Tarja Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Las Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Ace Davis

c/o Winfield B. Davis

Skyline Terrace Apts.

930 Figueroa Terr. Apt. 529

Los Angeles, California 90012-3072

Christopher D. Davis

3005 North Beverly Glen Circle

Los Angeles, California 90077
And

514 West 26" Street, #3E

Kansas City, Missouri 64108

14

First Class US Mail

First Class US Mail

First Class US Mail

First Class US Mail

First Class US Mail




O W N o e W N

T e e T B = R = U R =
® N o0 s W N K O

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.

First Class US Mail

Registered Agent for FHT Holdings, LLC,

a Nevada Limited Liability Company
4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESQ.
CLEAR COUNSEL LAW GROUP
50 Stephanie Street, Suite 101
Henderson, Nevada 89012
Jonathan(@clearcounsel.com
Attorneys for Stephen K. Lenhardt

Mark Solomon, Esq.

Joshua Hood, Esq.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Attorney for Petitioner Caroline Davis

DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY
SHANNA CORESSAL, CTFA

c/o Charlene Renwick, Esq.

Lee, Hernandez, Landrum & Garofalo
7575 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Honorable Judge Sturman

Dept. 26, Eighth Judicial Dist. Court
Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

\

\
1

Hand Delivered

Hand Delivered

Hand Delivered

Hand Delivered

\ Y&

f r - \ v g. PR
| L I { /

Ern:pl;J:J

15

yée of%\ﬁtfiony L. hwney, Ltd.




EXHIBIT 6

000000000000



~k 8 i D B2

e

5

Electronically Filed
04/20/2015 02:58:22 PM

%*‘M

HARRIET H. ROLAND, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
NV Bar No. 5471

ROLAND Law Firm

2470 E. 8t Roas Plowy, Ste, 103

Henderson, NV 89074

Telephone: {702) 452-1500

Facsimiie: (702) 920-8203

troland@rotandlawfing.com

ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 8366

TIFFANY S, BARNEY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 9754

ANTHONY L. Barxngy, LTn.

3317 W. Charleston Blvd,, Sutie B
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Telephone: (702 438-7878
Facsimile: {7023 259-1116
Attorneys for Christopher D. Davis

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

in the matter oft . . -
Case No.: P-15-083867-1

The BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY HERITAGE Pept. No.: 26

TRUST, dated July 28, 2000, as amended on
Febroary 24, 2014,

CHRISTOPHER D, DAVIS’ REPLY TO CAROLINE DAVIS® QPPOSITION TO HIS
MOTION TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NRCP (12)(by AND NRCP 19

CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS {("Christopher™), by and through bis attorneys HARRIET H.
ROLAND, Esq.. of the ROLAND LAW FIRM and ANTHONY L. BARNEY, Esq,, of the law
office of ANTHONY L. BARNEY, LTD., and hereby submits his reply to Caroline Davis’

(“Caroline”) opposition to his motion o dismiss the Petition of Caroline Davis {“Caroline”)
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pursuant © Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure 12({b) and for fuiture to join an indispensible party
under NRCP 19. This pleading is based on the Memorandum of Points and Authorities attached

hereta, any exhibits attached hereto, and any oral argument that will be heard in this matter.

DATED this 1 7th day of April, 2015,

Respectiully Subunitted,
ROLA’\IIH AW FIRM A

;t

4’1{}?», w/ o [/mm (D

Harriet H. Roland, Esq.
Aitorney for Christopher D, Daeiy

fremainder  of  page  istendionally  lgit blankf
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I, FACTS PRESENTED

Christopher Davis hereby incorporates the Facts Presented in his Motion to Dismiss
Pursuant to NRCP 12(b) and NRCP 19 (“Original Motion™) as if set forth fully herein, By way
of summary, ke alieges:

Christopher's mother, Beatrice B. Davis (“Beatrice™), a life-long resident of Missour,
created several trusts and did extensive, sophisticated estate planning after her husband lus W,
Dayis died. Her long-time attorney was the Missouri firm of Lehnhardt & Lehnardt. She
created the Beatrice B. Davis Revocahle Trust, in Missouri, on Aprii 4, 1880, (the Revocable
Trust) and the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust (the “FHT), in Missouri, on July 28,
2000. She participated in the Davis Family Office, a Missouri limited Hability company, formed
on November 3, 1999.  None of these entities had any Nevada contacts uatil the purported
appointment of Durham Trust Company on Febroary 24, 2014

Christopher Davis ("Christopher™) and his wife Taria are residents of Missouri. Caroline
Davis is @ resident of Washington. (Caroline and Christopher serve as co-trustees of the
Revocable Trust which is administered ander Missouri faw, in Missouri.) Winfield Davis and
his son Ace Davis are residents of Japan, but citizens of the United States. Stephen Lehnardt, the
Trust Protector, is a resident of Missouri. Alaska Trust Company and its successor in interest,
Alaska USA Trust Company, do business in Alaska and, upon information and beiief, have no
Nevada contacts. Among afl the entities and assets, the oniy contact with Nevada is Dunham
Trust Company, (“Dunham”) which is afleged to be currently acting as directed trustes of the

FHT. Even the Ashiey Cooper insurance policy (the product of a tax-free exchange from the
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vear 2000), which is the primary asset of the trust and the subject matier of Caroline’s petition,
is not administered in Nevada. It is administered under a custodian domicited in Puerto Rico,
and its investment advisor is a Canadian broker-dealer.

Dunham created FHT Holdings, LLC, ("FHT Holdings™) on March 28, 2014, and
transferred the insurance poliey to it Dunham is the 100% owner/member of FHT Holdings.
Christopher is the mawager, and Dunham purportedly acts as “directed trustee” pursiant to the
purported First Amendroent to the FHT dated February 24, 2014, Upon information and belief,
the direcied trastee and LLC structure was put into place by Dunham in an attempt to shield
itself from the fiduciary liability inherent in holding large assets without diversification.

Christopher Davis, as manager of FHT Holdings, has no power over the Ashley Cooper
policy, or over the Puerto Rico custodian, or over the Canadian broker-dealer investment
adviser. Lipon information and belief, the sole purpose of his appointment and the formation of
FHT Holdings, LLC, was to shield Dunbam from fiduciary liability for its action or inaction.
Christopher receives no compensation or benefit in bis position as manager of FHT Holdings.

., LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT

A. Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction Invalidates Nevada'’s Jurisdiction Bue To

Absence of Conditions Precedent to Change of Situs from Alaska to Nevada.

The entirety of Caroline’s petition and her opposition to the motion to dismiss, and her
request for the Nevada court to assert jurisdiction over Christopher and the Revocable Family
Trust, rests defectively upon the presumed validity of the change of situs of the Beatrice B.
Davis Family Heritage Trust dated July 28, 2000 (the "FHT) from Alaska to Nevada,

purportediy accomplished by the February 24, 20 [4 First Amendment,
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It is imporiant to note that the guestion of the validitv of the change of situs is different

than the question of the validitv of the First Amendment.  Although Carcline asserts that the

purported First Amendment is “presumied to be valid unless proven otherwise”, all the facts and
evidence prove the change of situs {a condition precedent 0 the amendment) was invalid and
not alfowed under the terms of the FHT. The validity of the change of situs of the FHT (and
presumably the amendment purporting to accomplish it) must be determined ander the express
mandate of Article 14, Section 6 of the FHT.
Section 6, Paragraph 1, of the FHT provides the requirements for a change of situs as:
Except as expressly provided herein, the situs of this agreement or any subtrust
established bereunder may be changed by the umanimous consent of all of the
beneficiaries then eligible to receive mandatory or discretionary distributions of net
income under this agreement or such subtrust, with the consent of any then-acting
Protector and the Trustee thereof, which shall be given only after Trustee has obtained
advice from counse! as to the tax and other consequences of a change in situs.'
The conditions precedent to the change of situs require that all of the beneficiaries then eligible
to receive mandatory or discretionary distributions must consent to the change of the situs. In
addition, both the FHT Trust Protector and Trustee must consent to the change of situs after the
Trustee has been able to meet with an attorney to discuss the tax and other consequences of a
change in situs, and after all the current income beneficiaries of the FHT have consented. These
conditions did not ocour. Therefore the situs of the FHT remains in Alaska until the conditions
are performed.

Caroline recognizes that Tarja Davis is a discretionary beneficiary of the FHT. This is

immediately clear by a simple review of the terms of the FHT? and by a simple review of the

' See Article 14, Section 4, Page 14-7.antached as Exhibit 1 to Caroline Davis’s Original Petition {emphasis added).
® See Trust, Article Three, Section 1, Page 3-1; See also Articie Eight, Section 3.d., Page 8-4, See also Articie 8-
4.b.1-2, Pages 8-12 and 8-13 aftached as Exhibii | to Caroline Davis™ Original Petifion.
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certificate of service filed by Caroline.” Furthermore, Caroline asserts and provides written

proof that Alaska USA Trust Company (“Alaska USA”) resigned as Trustee on December 5§,

2013, The resignation of Alaska USA as Trustes occurred almaost three months prior to the

A

execution of the purparted first amendment on February 24, 2014 and the appointment of

Dunham Trust Company (“Dunham™) as successor Trastee.

There is no evidence that zavone or any entity assumed the office of Trusies and was in
authority to act and provide consent of the Trustee during the period between the resignation of
Alaska USA in December 2013 and the purported first amendment attempting the change of
situs and appointing Dunham almost three months later. In contravention of the terms of the
FHT, there was a purported change in situs made while there was no acting Trusiee to provide
informed consent to the change in situs. Further, it appears everyone overlooked the necessity
of ubtaining the consent Christopher’s wife, Tarja, who was and is a beneficiary entitled to
discretionary distributions. Tarja did not consent to the change in situs, and her signature cannot
be found on any of the documents purporting to achieve the change in situs to Nevada and
Dunham’s appointivient as sUccessor fruste,

The law of Alaska, as the situs and place of administration of the FHT before the
attempted change of situs, and the place of residence of Alaska USA Trust Company, the then
Trustee, governs the validity of the First Amendment’s change of situs to Nevada, the
appointment of Dunhan, and the other termus of the First Amendment, as well as the validity of

the Trust and the First Amendment itself.

3 Hee Cenlification of Service for Oppusition to Uhrisepher D. Davis”™ Molion o Disniiss Pursuant to NROP (12) i)
and NRCP 19 dated Apsit 13, 2015 {This correction was made by Caroline Davis after Christopher Davis filed Bis
Maotion to Dismiss alerting the parties as to the defectiveness of both the servine of process and the defeciive nature
of the purported first amendment).
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Article 12, Section ) of the FHT requires “Any proceedings to seek judicial instructions
or a judicial determination shall be initiated by my Trustee in the appropriate state court baving
original jurisdiction of those matters relating to the construction and administration of trusts.
Because under the terms of the FHT, questions of validity must be determined under Alaska
law, and Alaska is the venue which has original jurisdiction of the FHT unti] the attempted
change of situs s accomplished, and an Alaska court must determine whether the change of
situs and the First Amendment were valid. Only then should the Nevada cowrt take jurisdiction
over the FHT, and only if jurisdiction is then appropriate.

Alaska law allows for modification of an irrevocable trust upon consent, but by court
approval.  AS 13,36.360 Maodification or Termination of lrrevocable Trust By Consent, reacds:

(a) Except as otherwise provided by this section, on petition by a trustee,
settlor, or heneficiary, a court may modity or terminate an irrevocable trust if alf of the
beneficiaries consent and if continuation of the trust on the existing terms of the trust is
ot necessary o further a material purpose of the trust, However, the court, in its
discretion, may determiue that the reason for modifying or terminating the trust under
the circumstances outweighs the interest in accomplishing the material purposes of the
trust, The inclusion of a restriction on the voluntary or involuntary transfer of trust
interests under AS 34.40.110 may constitute a material purpose of the trust under this
subsection, but is not presumed to constitute a material purpose of the trust under this
subsection.

{h) Unless otherwise provided in the trust instrument, an irrevocable trust

may not be modified or terminated under this sectivu while a settlor is also a

discretionary bencficiary of the trust,
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1 {¢) If a beneficiary other than a qualified beneficiary does not consent to &

modification or termination of an irrevocable trust that is proposed by the trustee, settior,
3
or other beneficiaries, a court may approve the proposed modification or termination if
4
% the cowurt determines
& (1) if all the benefiviaries had consented, the trust could have been
7 modified or lerminated under this section: and
8 s , , o
(2) the rights of a beneficiary who does not consent will be adequately
B
protected or not significantly impaired.
is
11 (d) In (¢} of this section, "qualified beneficiary” means a beneficiary who
iz {1) on the date the beneficiary's qualification is determined, is entitled or
i3 eligible to receive a distribution of trust income or principal; or
14 - i s T . o
(2) would be entitled to receive a distribution of trast income or principal
is
if the event causing the trust’s terminalion oCours,
i6
14 It is well settled that a trust may only be modified in accordance with its specific terms.

18 || Where a trust instrument requires the consent of specific parties in order for an amendment to be
A2 valid, the lack of consent will invalidate a purported amendment.® This required cousent
demonsirates the importance of having Alaska USA Trust Company {(“Alaska USA™) or their
successor-in-interest {and predecessor trustee) Alaska Trust Company demonstrate authovity and

2% {consent to change the siws of the FHT from Alaska to Nevada, because unless this evidence of

28 % Dadlinger v. Abed, 199 1L App. 3d 1057, 10591060 (UL App. CL 1900 citing Parish v Parish (1663}, 2911 2d
141, 149, 193 N.E.2d 761, 766.) (1t is elementary that if the method of exercising 3 power of modification is

Q7 i desoribed in the trust instrement, the power Can be asserted only in that manner)

S Williams v. Springfleld Sarine Bank, 131 1l App. 3d 417, 473 N.E2d 1122 {1985} {This rule was applied where
28 1l the trust instrument permaitted amendment by the settlor, the appellate court bolding that an atte mpted ameadment
by only one seftlor, afier the other had died, was invalid); See also Restatement (Second) of Trosts § 334,
Explanatory Notes, conument ¢, af 14d {1955) { "I the settior ceserves a power to modify the toust oaly with the
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and the FHT Trust Protector was not enough to meet the sirict requirements of the condition
precedent (1e, change of situs) for the purported Fisst Amendment.

Caroline has provided no evidence of any written or even oral consent of any trustee
authorizing the FHTs change in situs prior to Alaska USA’s resignation on December 3, 2013,
She has not provided any evidence of Tatja having consented to the change of situs. She has net
nrovided any svidence of the unanimous agreement of Beatrice Davis’s children to appoint a
successor trustee in the event the Trust Protector fails to appoint a Successor Trustee within
thirty (30) days after Alaska USA resigned, & and even if they had, the successor trustes and
Taria would have had to consent to the change of situs. Therefore, the change of situs under the
purported First Amendment must be presumed invalid until such evidence of an acting Trustee's
consent can be produced and evidence of the Trustee’s and all beneficiaries’ consent of the
change in situs can be obtained. Further and most impaortantly, such a dispute, which includes
the validity of the First Amendment, must be brought in Alaska, as the original situs of the FHT
pefore the purported First Amendment and the atiempted change of situs.

Christopher asserts that the change of situs is invalid because of the lack of consent of all
heneficiaries and the absence of action by an Alaska Trusiee. The determination of the validity
of the purported First Amendment and the change of situs {as well as its other provisions) is a
condition precedent to the Nevada court taking jurisdiction over the FHT, That determination
must he made under Alaska law before the Nevada court can assert jurisdiction over the FHT.

Caroline alleges that the FHT Trust Protector validly appointed Dunham as successor Trustee on

consent of pae or more of the benefisiaries, or of the trustee, o of 8 third person, Be Cannot modify the trust without

such consent” L
S See Trust, Articie Eleven, Section 3{c), Page 11-3, attached as Exinbnt 1 to Caroline Dawns’s Originad Petition,

PETAPP000359



wr R B

e

4]

7

%

ig
i1
12

February 24, 2014, citing the second paragraph of Article 14, Section 6 as his authority to do 50
however as noted herein, she omitted the preceding paragraph relating to the change of situs
which is the condition precedent before an amendment can be authorized. Although the FHT
authorizes the Trust Protector and/or the heneficiaries to appoint a successor trustee in certain
circumstances, the change of situs could only be authorized upon consent by all beneficiaries,
and approval by a trustee in the original situs of Alaska

When the terms of a trust are not followed, the resulting actions based upon such
deviation may be invalidated.”  Under the terms of the FHT, discussed above, it wias not
Dunham’s consent that was required to change the situs. The timing of the purported First
Amendment and Dunham’s consent put the cart before the horse. In order to move the situs of
the FHT from Alaska to Nevada or any other jurisdiction, all the beneficiaries had to consent,
the “then acting Trust Protector” had to consent, and the Alaska trustee hiad to consent only after
obtaining the requisite legal advice. Only then could a change in situs oceur. {This is a
different and more demanding standard than merely changing the trustee to another Alaska
trustee.) Another Alaska Trustee could have been appointed, and the consent of all the
beneficiaries could have been obtaired: then upon agreement by the Trustee, all beneficiaries,
and the Trust Protector, the situs could have been validly changed. However, the FHT s
purported First Amendment attempts to change the FHT s situs while concurrently appointing
Dunham as a “directed trustee™  Again, Dunham’s valid appointment as a Trustee, and its
consent to serve, could have been achieved only after the situs of the FHT was changeid from

Alaska o Nevada, Had ali of the beneficiaries consented, the decision to change the situs may

T Northwestern University v, Slef oraine, 108 1L App. 3d 310, 438 MN.E.2d 1369 (1982) (‘This rule was applied
where the sertlor had neglected 1o fuliosw the terms of the trust which reguired for aa amendment ordy that the
settfor put the amendmen: in writing. sign i, and deliver it to the trustees during the settlor's lifetime.

£y

Y
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have found a more stable legal basis had Dunbam been doing business in Alaska, But as a
Nevada trustes, Dunham would have had to already be in tenure as trustee, procured advice
from legal counsel about the tax and other consequences of moving the FHT situs, and then
anthorized the actosl change in FHT s situs from Alaska. The requisite consent of an authorized
Alaska trustee and ali the beneficiaries does not appear in the purported First Amendment or in
any other document, and Caroline Davis does not provide any other evidence of a Trustee’s
consert between December 2013 and February 2014, The condition precedent of all the
beneficiaries’ consents and the Alaska frustee’s comsent was not met in order to provide
authority to then acting Trust Protector, Stephen Lehnardt, to change the situs of the FHT
without the consent of an Alaska Trustee as required by the terms of the FHT. The FHT's
purporied First Amendment’s change of situs is, therefore, invalid.

Establishing the validity of the FHTs purported First Amendment under NRS 164.010
without invoking Alaska jurisdiction is Caroline’s “attempted foothold”™ in her urging for this
Court 1 take improper in rem jurisdiction over the FHT, FHT Holdings, and personal
jurisdiction over Dunham, but more importantly it is the defective basis upon which she urges
this Court to assume jurisdiction over Christopher in all his capacities within any family entity,
foreign or domestic, including the Revocable Trast and the Davis Family Office which are
residents of Missouri. Even assuming arguendo that jurisdiction is proper through the untenable
theory that the the First Amendment is valid, this court could only ablain jurisdiction over the
FHT. Thus, Caroline is more than willing to overlook the FHT’s requirements for change of
situs and the juriadictional prerequisites, and arrive at the erroncous conclusion that somehow
Christopher and Mr. Lenhardi “consented to the jurisdiction of this Court by operation of taw.”

Noticeably, Caroline cites NRS 1635555 as authority for this statement but ignores the

PETAPP000361



L7- T B S T T Rt

ARE

b ]
e o

18

#3 B3
>R

f v
L

#
&7y

A8

requirement that the FHT be subject to the laws of Alaska, which, is clearly in dispute precisely
because of the invalidity of the purported First Amendment’s change of the FHT's situs to
Nevada.

It is clear that even during the life of Beatrice B. Davis, the situs of the FHT could not be
changed unless her Alaska trastee had obtained an opinion of legal counsel to the effect that the
change in situs would not impact adversely on the spendthrifi provisions of the FHT.? The
express purpose of the FHT was to support and protect Beatrice’s family for generations o
come, throagh the protection fur the shares allocated to each benefivciary, so that no situation
would he created that could expose any of the beneficiary’s shares to the claims of creditors
jncinding amongst any beneficiary acting as a creditor to another.” The attempted appointment
as Dunham as a directed trustee shedding all its Hability onto Christopher clearly contravened
her intent.

Beairice Davis, the trustmaker, was very clear that even if a power was granted to ber
Trustee by applicable state and federal statutes, it would be strictly fimited to any express
limitations or contrary directions in the FHT.® Any amendrent to change the situs of the FHT
would require the opinion of legal counsel as to its effect and be cortailed, if applicable, by the
terms of the FHT, This protection is implicit in the requirement that the advice of fegal counsel
be sought by the Trustee prior to a change in situs of the FHT.M There is simply no evidence to
suggest that such an opinion was obtained by the Alaska Trustee prior to the purported change

inn FHT sius.

¥ See Trust, Acticle Fourtesn, Section 6, Page 14-7 and 14-8.
* See Trust, Article 8, Section 3 (b, Page 83,

1% Qee Trust, Adticle Thineen, Section 3.z, Page 13-1%.

1t Que Trust, Article Fourtesn, Section 6, Page 14-7 and 4§,

12
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Because of the lack of evidence of the required consent by the Alaska trustee and all the
beneficiaries, and because the Alaska trustees initiated and completed all the transactions for
which Caroline is demanding an account, the presence of the predecessor Alaska trustees acting
prior to February 24, 2014 (the date of the purported First Amendment) is indispensable to this
matter, in order to determine the validity and consent issues discussed herein. Without the
indispensible party(ies) being joined, including Alaska Trust, the predecessor trustee and
successor in interest of Alaska USA, and/or another Alaskan successor afier December 35, 2013,
the matter cannot properly adjudicated,

B. Indispensible Parties to this Action and Carcline’s Failure to Provide Notice or

Service

Caroline alleges that “During their tenure as Trustee, both Alaska' and Alaska USA
distributed approximately $2,104,744.68, from loans taken against the Ashley Cooper Life
Insurance Policy, to Chrstioher individually, and as a co-trustee with Carpline of the Beatrice B.
Davis Revocable Living Trust, dated April 4, 1990, as amended (the “Revocable Trust”), and as
Manager of the Davis Family Office, a Missouri {imited liability company (the “Davis Office”).
Caroline apparently believes that the Alaska trustees which allegedly procured more than two
million doliars in policy loans from Ashley Cooper Life Insurance Policy for various FHT
purposes, including making loans to Beatrice and paying their own fees, are not indispensible
parties, simply because she alleges that, Mr, Davis, in his individual capacity, and in capacity as

Trustee of the Revocable Trust, and as Manager of the Davis Office, was the only individual 1o

‘2 Ajaska Trust Company was the predecessor trustee of the Beatrice B. Davis Family Heritage Trust dated July
28, 2000 prior to Alaska USA Trust Company.

13
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receive distributions as a result of such loans and the only one privy to the information sought
by Ms. Davis,..."""? Her allegation is misplaced.

Caroline apparently believes that neither Beatrice, nor the Alaska trustees, nor any other
entity, were the recipients of any of the FHT funds borrowed, distribated, or otherwise disbursed
from the Ashiey Cooper Life Insurance Policy, which based upon the administration expenses
by Alaska and/or Alaska USA or the Trust Protector is improbable at best. Under Alaska Jaw
and almost every other jurisdiction in the United Stares, a trustee is entitied to fees, and the
mandate of an accounting for trust assets is directed to the trustee that actually administered the
trust funds or assets, not to a beneficiary or other creditor or debtor of the trust. " In this case,
those trustees required to account would be Alaska Trust and Alaska USA {(now merged into
Alaska USA) and they are the only ones who could account for these transactions, and whether
or not they received any of those funds including but not limited to thelr administration costs or
other investment expenses, as well as for what purposss the loans, diswibutions, or
dishursements were made. Because only they would have such information, they are a
necessary and indispensible party, Caroline’s request would greatly prejudice and unduly
burden Christopher to attempt secure information from and in the possession of the prior
trustees in Alaska for documentation that Caroline desires through a proceeding In Nevada,
during the time that she had co-equal status with him as a beneficiary. Alaska and/or Alaska
USA would be the proper parties from whom 1o request her desired intormation,

Notably, Caroline alleges that Dunbass Trust Company s an indispensible panty, having

and expenses) while Alaska and Alaska USA are pot indispensible parties after having

'} Qee Opposition @ 7:20-22,
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allegediy received and distributed $2,164,744.68 as well as alleged!y transferring all the assets
of the FHT to Dunham. Interestingly, the information Caroling Davis is requesting would be in
the possession of the two Alaska trustees that she claims are not indispensable, which is an
urreasonabie argument. It is unclear if Caroline even bothered to request an accounting from
cither Alaska Trust or Alaska USA concerning their alleged receipt and distribution of
$2.164,744.68, or from Dunham regarding the $23,000 that was allegedly loaned during

Dunham Trast Company’s alicged trusteeship before rushing to this cowrt for a remedy. As a

beneficiary, she could have gasily requested this information from these trustees without filing
the present court action,

Because of her rush to court without apparently requesting these documents from the
trustees, Caroline now attempts twice to indicate that she is “not now objecting to the toans and
distributions being made or claiming any breach of fiduciary duty...” or she “is not now
claiming any willful misconduct or gross negligence by Alaska or Alaska USAS However,
she has asked this court o assume jurisdiction over the Nevada trustee, the FHT, the Trust
Protector and trust adviser, and if she succeeds, she will file any future action in this same
Nevada case. Therefore, her allegation that “Alaska and Alaska USA have no interest in the
outcome of the retief being songht by Ms, Davis in her Petition” is incorrect. Alaska and Alaska
USA would have every interest in the autcome of this action because they were trustees of the
Trust who made the trust Joans which are the subject of Caroline’s concerns, and over which she
has asked this Court to exercise in rem jurisdiction. Furthermore, they were trusiees for the time
periods in which Caroline seeks all information and, therefore, logically any information and/or

claiims arising from the information in Alaska and Alaska USA’s possession is refevant to them.

1 Geo Alaska Statute 13.36.080; Se« also NRS 164.015 and NRS 153.031(1xh).

et
A
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Relying on the purported validity of the First Amendment to the FHT, Caroline comes o
the misleading conclusion that, “{because] Dunbam Trust lacked the authority to act, the transfer
of the Ashley Cooper Life Insurance Policy must have been done at the direction of Mr. Davis,
as Investment Trust Advisor.” Noticeably, Caroline removes any reference to the Alaska or
Alaska USA Trustees who would have the information or approved any alleged transfers and
have the information pertaining thereto. Caroline freely omits information to wrongfully obtain
the information she seeks. She fusther tgnores that the manager of an LLC wholly owned by
the Trustee who is a beneficiary of the trust would not have the authority to transfer the policy
to itself, Caroline leaps to her finger-pointing apparently without bothering to request the
transfer documents either from Dunbam or the Puerto Rico custadian,

Caroline is simply attempting to gain access to records that she could request from the
parties that she claims are not indispensable, and to debve into Christopher’s personal affairs.
She has asked for an accounting from bim as to the use of all the loan proceeds, disbursements
or distributions from the FHT, without regard to the entity or person who in fact was the
borrower or recipient. {t is a question for the Alaska truster as to whether the loans or
distributions were made in accordance with the provisions of the FHT. With 20/20 hindsight,
Caroline may regret that she did not borrow funds, request distributions, or demand an
accounting from the Alaska trustees while she was able to do so. Now she is asking this Court
to turst a blind eye and “look beyond™™® her failare to even make any appropriate request on the
proper parties or serve the proper parties that would have the information that she is seeking.
Christopher respectfuliy requests that this Court grant his motion to dismiss and deny Caroline’s

clatsus in their entirety.

¥ See Page 7, tines 24-25 and Page 8, lices 17-18 of Careline Davis’s Objection.

i
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C. Individual Parties or Entities Were Not Properly Served for the Court 1o Exercise
Jurisdiction, and FHT Holdings® Corporate Form May Not Be Disregarded
In an effort to buttress her argument regarding their lack of proper service upon FHT
Holdings, LLC, Caroline cites to inapplicable case law from Surrogate’s Court of New York,
New York County, which does not address the necessity of providing proper service to a
corporation. In similar fashion to her omission of the language of the FHT as it related to the
condition precedent to any future amendment, she even withheld the pertinent language for the
cited case which actually held that, “It is sometimes said that where an estate or trust owns all or

substantially all of the shares of a corporation, the corporate form may be disregarded and the

situation viewed just as if the fiduciaries held titie to the corporate assets. This would appear to

be an oversimplification of the matter, It is not so much a matter of disregarding the corporate

form, but rather of giving paramount consideration to the testamentary plan and scheme, and
effectuating it in the manner prescribed by the testator. (citation omitted) Sometimes, due
consideration of the testamentary plan demands that the corporate form be respected. This is
particularty true where the testator directed the formation of a corporation or the continuance of
one formed during his lifetime. (citation omitted) .’

Under the facts of this case, Beatrice, as Trustmaker, did not form FHT Holdings, LLC,
and did not specify that FHT Holdings be given consideration as part of her testamentary plan
and scheme. Based upon the definition of the case cited by Caroline, she is attempting 1o

oversimplify this matter, which canunot be done with regard to the facts presented in this matter.

= Petition at 7:5-8.
Y in the Matter of Schnur, 39 Misc. 2d 880, 887, 242 N.Y.8.2d, at 132 {1963).
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Furthermore, in Swensen v. Sheppard. our Nevada Supreme Court recognized that NRS
164.010(1} and NRS 164.015(6) do not give the court jurisdiction to impose personal
judgments.”®  Likewise, it found that it could not impose personal liability on individuals or
entities which “required the court o acquire ‘personal jurisdiction over [them asf partfies],
normally through appropriate process based on contacts with the jurisdiction or through [their}
general appearance therein to defend on the merits,”?

In her Opposition, however, Caroling attempts to request this comrt take exception 1o the
requirements for proper service and notice, which is entively improper. Caroline §s attempling
to use the relaxed standards of statutory a2 rem jurisdiction for the more stringent requirements
necessary to obtain the necessary personal jurisdiction over Christopher Davis, individually or
upon FHT Holdings, LLC. Again, this is improper and contrary due process requirements.
Proper notice and service are required for personal jurisdiction over a parly especiaily when
requesting the court to exercise power and authority over an individual party or upon a business
entity.

Furthermore, when assets are transferred with proper authority to a business entity, then
the property becomes part of the business entity and not the trust.’® Thas, a district court’™s i
rem jurisdiction under NRS 164.010(1) and NRS 164.015(6) over the trust assels do not extend
to assets transferred from the trust 1o a business entity or to a third party from that business
entity.”'  Therefore, even if the Court were to obtain jurisdiction over the insurance policy

administered by & Puerto Rico insurer with the advice of the Canadian broker-dealer investment

® Swensen v. Sheppard (in re Aboudy, 314 P.3d 941, 946 {Nev, 2013)

14, oiting Restatement {Second} of Judgments § 30(2) omt. ¢; see Young v, Nev, Title Co., 103 Nev. 436, 442,
744 P.2d 902, 905 (19873 (A court does not have jurisdiction to enter judgment for or against one who {5 not a
party to the action.”}

5 Swensen v, Shoppard (I ve Abewd, 314 B3 041, 945946 (Nev. 2018

i,
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advisor, Caroline would aiso have to seek personal jurisdiction over Christopher, individually,
or PHT Holdings, LLC to obtain any relief she seeks, She did wot do so.

Therefore, the due process rights of the entities must be respected, and service properly
administered in order to obtain jurisdiction over Christopber, individually, and FHT Holdings,
LLC. Therefore, Caroline’s Original Petition should be dismissed,

D. Additional Indispensable Parties Named in Opposition Were Not Served; therefore,

Jurisdiction is Improper over Them.

Caroline admittedly did not isciude additional parties in her Original Petition that she
now afleges were recipients of FHT funds and loans from the insurance policy. Caroline alleges
that, “During their tenure as Trustee, both Alaska and Alaska USA distributed approximately
52.164,744.68, from loans taken against the Ashiey Cooper Life Insurance Policy, to Mr. Davis
individually, as co-Trustee (with her) of the Beatrice B. Davis Revocable Living Trust, dated
April 4, 1990, as amended (the “Revoeable Trust”), and as Manager of the Davis Family Office,
& Missouri limited liability company (the “Davis Office”). o order to allegediy distribute loans,
Alaska and Alaska USA must have been recipients of FHT fusds. In order to make a loan of
FHT funds to Alaska and Alaska, the custodian of the Ashley Cooper Life Insurance Policy
must have been in receipt of FHT funds, If, as alieged, FHT funds were received by
Christopher, the Revocable Trust, and the Davis Family Office from Alaska and Alaska USA, !
all three would have been recipients of those funds. Of the prior six alleged recipients, nong of
them was afforded proper notice or service in this matter. Therefore, this Court facks
jurisdiction over these parties. Particularly, Nevada Jaw does not allow for this Court to take

jurisdiction over the Revocable Trust and the Davis Family Office, which are Missouri entities,
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jurisdiction over Christopher Davis, individually, as trustee of the Revocable Trust, and as

jurisdiction over them. Therefore, Caroline’s claims in her Original Petition must be dismissed.

without examining the requirements necessary for jurisdiction over foreign entities holding only
personal property,

Caroline, in offect, argues 1) the entity authorized to make the policy ltoan is not an
indispensible party, 2) that the party making the lvans or distributions does not even need to be
noticed or served concerning the policy Joans, 3) the only individual atleged as a recipient does
not need to be served pursuant to NRCP 4; and 4) that notice or service either under NRCP 4 or
NRS 155,010 does not need 1o be provided to the remaining alleged distributees and recipients
of FHT funds. These four arguments vioiate ail constitutionally protected due process rights
and related Jmws existent in Nevada, and likely every uther jurisdiction in the United States.
Proper parties should be included in lawsuits affecting their rights or responsibilities and proper
personal and subject matter jurisdiction should be obtained over all parties in such lawsuits.

Caroline admittedly understands the irportance of obtaining in rem jurisdiction over a
trustee of 4 trust pursuant to NRS 164,010, because she asks this Court to assume jurisdiction of

the FHT pursuant to this statwtory authority. Notwithstanding this admission, she seeks

manager of FHT Holdings without even bothering o serve notice under NRS {585,010 or
oursuant to NRCP 4. Funthermore, Caroline failed to serve the custodian of the Ashley Cooper
Life tnsurance Policy of which she claims provided the loans (o the FHT.

Admittedly, all of these parties were admittedly never even served by Caroling, and

therefore her Petition must be dismissed for fack of proper jurisdiction over these parties.

Notice and service of process were never given o these parties, and the Court is without

20
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E. The Alaska Trastees are Indispensible Parties and Meet NRCP 19 Requirements;
therefore, without a Joinder of these Parties, this Matter Must be Dismissed.

in Reply to the NRCP 19 factors discussed by Carofine in her Opposition, it is evident
that Caroline belies her own statements, Caroline indicates on the one hand that Alaska and
Alaska USA woulid not be “placed in a position in which they would need to protect any
interest™ while on the other indicating that Caroline is “not mew claiming any willful
misconduct or gross negligence by Alaska or Alaska USA™ suggesting that when she obtains
any of Alaska or Alaska USA documents that possible elaims are Jikely 0 fotlow.” Alaska or
Alasks USA must be allowed to defend themselves if necessary or protect themselves from
Jiability in the accuracy of information that may be provided during their tenure as Trustees of
the FHT to avoid claims of willful misconduct or gross negligence by Caroline.

Furthermore, Christopher will be subjected to double or multiple or otherwise
inconsistent obligations in possibly many jurisdictions as a result of Caroline’s claims without
the necessary parties, Alaska and Alaska USA, joined to the present matter. Caroline seems 10
ignore the fact that she bas now named nultiple Defendants in this matter whose interests must
alt be considered, especially i fight of the fact that proper service has not been effectuated on
them for an order or judgment to be rendered against them in this matter.

Curiously, Caroline then reguests the Court to seek relief from Christopher individually
if the Court does find that Alaska and Alaska USA are indispensable parties. She wrongfully
asks the court to order Christopher to provide the documents that are in Alaska and Alaska
USA’s possession without gaining proper jurisdiction over him individuatly, She wrongfully

alieges that such a request would aliegedly not be prejudiciat to Christopher and allegedly

2 §ee Cacohine’s Opposition, Page 8, lnes 21-22.

PETAPP000371



~ dm im0 ol 4y s

Lo v

Bx ty e R I T N =S
L EE U U P

o3
#3

o £ v 28
jurisdiction over the FHT.~

would be an adequate remedy, although the requested documents would be in the Trustee’s
possession.

She also falsely alleges that Alaska cannot allegedly assume jurisdiction over
Christopher, erroneously citing NRCP 19(b) for this proposition.® With proper service to

Christopher, Caroline could obtain jurisdiction over Christopher in Alaska it Alaska has

Joinder of Alaska and Alaska USA, Inc.. is necessary as previously explained in
Christopher’s Original Motion to Dismiss and herein. If their joinder is not feasible, then this
matter must be dismissed, because they are necessary and indispensable parties to this matter,

{1, CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Christopher respectfully requests the Court do the following,
i, Deny Caroline’s Original Petition in its entirety;

2. Deny Careline’s Opposition in its entirety; and

LS

Grant the relief requested in Christopher’s Original Motion to Dismiss and ail further
requests made in his Reply to Caroline’s Opposition to his Original Motion to Dismiss;
4. Deny jurisdiction over the FHT Trust as a proceeding in rem untit an Alaska court

determines the validity of the change in situs, and/or the First Amendment;

* See Caroline’s Opposition, Page 8, Hnes 17-18 {emphasis added).

M See Carpline’s Opposition, Page 9, lines 14-15 and fn 24,

* See AS 13.36.373. Trustee Advisor: (g} A trust instrument may provide for the appointment of a person to act as
an advisor to the frustee with regard to all or some of the matiers relating 1o the property of the frust. (b} Unless the
terms of the trust instrument provide otherwise, if an adviser is appointed under (a) of this section, the property and
management of the trust and the exercise of aif powers and discretionary acts exercisable by the trustee remain
vested in the trustee as fully and effectively as if an advisor were not appeinted, the trustee is not required 1o follow
the advice of the advisor, and the advisor is not liable as or considered 1o be 2 rustee of the trust or a fiduciary
when acting as an advisor to the frust; See also AS 13.36.035 {&) The court kas exciusive jurisdiction of
proceedings initiated by interested parties concerning the internal affairs of trusts, including trusts covered by {c) of
this section. Except as provided in (¢) and {(d) of this section, proceedings that may be maintained under this section
are those congerning the administration and distribution of frusts, the declaration of rights, and the determination of
other matters involving trustess and teneficianies of tnusts,

22
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Deny jurisdiction over the Revocable Trust and the Davis Family oltice:

Deny jurisdiziion over Christopher Davis personally;

SATED this 17" day of April. 2015,

Respectiully Submiited,
RotAaND Law Fiam

' § F

S b / i
“ YKL ;‘Q ),

Hamriet H. Refand, Fsq.

NV Bar No. 3471

2470 E. St. Rose Phwy, Swe. 105

Henderson, NV 83074

Telephone: (7023 452-1500

Facsimtile: (702) 920-89G3

hrolandirolandlawtirm.com

Attorney for Christopher . Daviy

el
Lad
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CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE

| hereby centify that [ am an employee of Anthony L. Bamey, Lid., and not # party to this action.
| further centify that except as otherwise noted on April 20, 2015, § served the foreguing
CHRISTOPHER D DAVIS' REPLY TO CAROLINE DAVIS® QOPPOSITION TO HIS
MOTION TO DISMISS PURSUANT TO NRCP (12)(by ANY NRCP 19 by first class US

a5

sl

a7
2

miail, postage prepaid, upon the following persons or entities:

Tarja Davis
314 West 2067 Street, #3E
Kansas City, Missouri 64108

Ace Dravis

cfo Winfield B. Davis

366-01 Habu Aridagawa Aridg
Wakayama 643-0025
JAPAN

Christopher D. Davis
514 West 26 Street, #3E
Ransas City, Misscurt 64108

Registered Agent Solutions, Inc.

Resgistered Agent for FHT Holdings, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company
4625 West Nevso Drive, Suite 2

Las Vegas, Nevada 88103

Stephen Lebnardt

20 Westwoods Dinve
Liberty, Missour! 64068
Stepheni@ichnardieomnm

Winfield B, Davis

366-6 Habu Aridagawa Arida
Wakayama 643-00238

JAPAN

Mark Solomon, Esq.

Joshua Hood, Esq.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 W. Cheyenne Ave.

Las Vegas, NY 9129

Attorney for Petitioner Caroline Davis

24
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Charlene Renwick, Esq.

Leg, Hornandez, Landrum & Garofalo
7875 Vegas Drive, #150

Las Vegas, Nevada 89128

Atiorney for Dunham Trust Company

Empldees of Antliony L. Barney, Ltd.
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Electronically Filed
04/28/2015 10:56:02 AM

TRAN % ié E
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* Kk ok Kk ok

IN THE MATTER OF THE TRUST OF: CASE NO. P-15-082867

THE BEATRICE DAVIS HERITAGE
TRUST.

DEPT. NO. XXVI

Transcript of Proceedings

BEFORE THE HONORABLE GLORIA J. STURMAN, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

MOTION TO DISMISS: MOTION ON CHRISTOPHER DAVIS’ MOTION TO
DISMISS PURSUANT TO NRCP 12 (B) AND NRCP 19; PETITION TO
ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER THE BEATRICE B. DAVIS FAMILY
TRUST, ASSUME JURISDICTION OVER CHRISTOPHER DAVID AS
INVESTMENT TRUST ADVISOR AND STEPHEN K. LEHNARDT AS
DISTRIBUTION TRUST ADVISOR, TO CONFIRM DUNHAM TRUST COMPANY
AS DIRECTED TRUSTEE, AND FOR IMMEDIATE DISCLOSURE OF
DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION FROM CHRISTOPHER D. DAVIS

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2015

APPEARANCES :
For Caroline Davis: MARK ALAN SOLOMON, ESQ.
JOSHUA M. HOOD, ESOQ.
For Christopher Davis: ANTHONY L. BARNEY, ESOQ.
For Stephen Lehnartdt: JONATHAN W. BARLOW, ESO.

For Dunham Trust Company: CHARLENE N. RENWICK, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: KERRY ESPARZA, DISTRICT COURT
TRANSCRIBED BY: KRISTEN LUNKWITZ

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2015 AT 10:09 A.M.

THE COURT: Okay. Will everybody state
appearances and we’re ready to go?

MR. BARLOW: Jonathan Barlow for Stephen Lehnardt,
the Trust Protector.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. RENWICK: Charlene Renwick on behalf of
Dunham Trust Company.

MR. BARNEY: Anthony Barney on behalf of
Christopher Davis.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SOLOMON: And Mark Solomon and Joshua Hood on
behalf of Caroline Davis.

THE COURT: Okay. So, this is, again, my day to
deal with these family issues. So, anyway, let’s discuss.
This is -- Mr. Solomon, your Petition to Assume
Jurisdiction over the Trust. I didn’t really see that that
issue, the assuming that jurisdiction over the trust, was
really opposed. So to that specific relief requested, 1is
anybody really opposing that?

MR. BARNEY: Yes. I filed a Motion to Dismiss --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARNEY: -- his Petition in that regard.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. But I thought that

Page 2
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was —-- Just to dismiss the petition or just to dismiss your
client or to dismiss the petition?

MR. BARNEY: Dismiss the --

THE COURT: Okay. It was Mr. Barlow who was just
looking -- who did his Joinder the right way. Nobody ever
does Joinders the right way. He --

MR. BARLOW: Well, thank vyou.

THE COURT: He made it really clear: I'm only
joining -- people always Just file joinders and I'm like:
What are you joining? He made it real clear what he’s
joining. He 1s Jjoining only to the extent that --

MR. BARLOW: Right. We turned in Mr. Barney’s
arguments --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. BARLOW: -- related to the jurisdiction and --

THE COURT: Jurisdiction only.

MR. BARLOW: -- the -- limited to the --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: -- Jjoinder parties. There was a
concern that we had that we didn’t join and subsequent
conversations after review of the Reply that we may have
changed our position on that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BARLOW: So, essentially, we're all

essentially in full joinder with the --

Page 3
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THE COURT: Okay. So you’re --

MR. BARLOW: -- Motion now after reviewing --

THE COURT: All right. So then --

MR. BARLOW: -- the Reply.

THE COURT: -- what’s your client’s position on --
any other --

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, we did file a Reply, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: You mean to Mr. Barlow?

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: Yeah, our position is that we
properly, under our statute, asked the Court to confirm him
as Trust Protector and Distribution Advisor because that'’s
what our law requires.

THE COURT: Okay. So, --

MR. SOLOMON: How do you want to tackle this, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: I think -- that’s why -- I think,
first of all, can we just make it clear who is on first?
So, --

MR. SOLOMON: It’'s my petition but they never
really responded to my petition --

THE COURT: Right. So, --

MR. SOLOMON: -- substantively.

Page 4
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THE COURT: -- the interests --

MR. SOLOMON: What they did was just took this
jurisdictional --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: -- Motion to Dismiss --

THE COURT: That was why I was wondering because -

MR. SOLOMON: -- which I don’t -- I opposed
specifically --

THE COURT: I know. It seemed like nobody was
really -- it didn’t -- it had gotten to this Jjurisdictional
issue, we didn’t really get to the issue of, you know, does
this Court have -- can this Court, you know, assume
Jurisdiction?

MR. BARNEY: And, Your Honor, therein lies the
Motion to Dismiss. If the Motion to Dismiss 1s determined
on its merits, --

THE COURT: So --

MR. BARNEY: -- this Court does not have
jurisdiction to --

THE COURT: -- I guess that’s my question is --

MR. SOLOMON: We only accept jurisdiction to
determine jurisdiction, obviously. So, --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SOLOMON: -- that’s where I think we are, Your

Page 5
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Honor.

THE COURT: So, yeah. And -- okay. So I guess
that’s the question then is: Does it make more sense to
start with the Petition to Dismiss --

MR. SOLOMON: I think so, yes.

THE COURT: -- and make the decision with respect
to jurisdiction --

MR. SOLOMON: And I can cover both in my response

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: -- because --

THE COURT: Perfect.

MR. SOLOMON: -- they’re relevant.

THE COURT: Then excellent. And I don't know, Mr.
Barney, who is arguing -- okay. Good. Thanks.

MR. BARNEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

Your Honor, as you are aware, the issue of
jurisdiction arises or fails under the issue of whether or
not there is a valid amendment to the trust. The terms of
the trust specifically indicate that in order to create an
amendment there must be a change in situs that is
effectively ratified as a condition precedent to any
amendment amending the trust to the laws of the state of
Nevada.

Under the terms of the trust, the change in situs

Page 6
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is required only after the consent of all of the
beneficiaries. The then acting Protector and the consent
of the Trustee after it has received its counsel during the
life of the testator a written opinion and thereafter an
opinion by counsel that a change in situs is proper.

In this case, in order for there to be a first
amendment, to even give the Court jurisdiction on the basis
upon which to take jurisdiction under 164.010, there had to
be a proper change in situs and there didn’t occur a proper
of situs in this case. There are certain beneficiaries of
this trust. We have Christopher Davis, we have Caroline
Davis, we have their son, and we also have Taria [phonetic]
Davis. Okay. The amendment would have required all of
their consents to --

THE COURT: But it said it was unanimous.

MR. BARNEY: It was unanimous.

THE COURT: Oh.

MR. BARNEY: And the trust, Your Honor, doesn’t
require unanimous consent, it requires all beneficiaries.
That’s the pertinent part of the trust and that’s set forth
under Article 14. All beneficiaries must consent to this.

As far as we know --

MR. SOLOMON: Who didn’t consent?

MR. BARNEY: Taria [phonetic].

MR. SOLOMON: Who is that?

Page 7
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MR. BARNEY: Taria [phonetic] is the wife of
Christopher Davis.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SOLOMON: Not at the time of this.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

MR. BARNEY: Yes. And, in fact, 1it’s clear that
they understood she was a beneficiary because in their
Opposition to our Motion to Dismiss, they actually notice -
- they took to notice her, okay, but they hadn’t previously
done so. OQOkay. 1It’s clear that she did not consent to
this.

There also wasn’t an acting Alaska Trustee at that
point to consent to the transfer. Mr. Solomon presented
evidence that was very clear that on December 5" that
Alaska Trust USA tendered their resignation and was no
longer the Trustee at that point. Then, allegedly, in
February, the first amendment was produced wherein the
change in situs occurred, allegedly, and a new Trustee was
appointed in that same document.

Now, Your Honor, that begs the question: How
could a Nevada Trustee based in Nevada who could only
operate within that situs be the Trustee that referred to
in the trust but had to receive counsel before they made
the change in situs that would also make the amendment

operative as a condition precedent and then go ahead and
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